CHERiY HILLs VILLAGE
COLORADO
2450 E. Quincy Avenue
Cherry Hills Village, CO 80113
ss’ww.cherryhillsvillage.com

Village Center
Telephone 303-789-2541
FAX 303-761-9386

City Council Agenda
Tuesday, May 21, 2019
5:30 p.m.
1.
2.

—

Study Session

Joint Study Session Quincy Farm Committee
Discussion of Agenda Items
—

6:30 p.m.

—

Regular Meeting

1.

Call to Order

2.

Roll Call of Members

3.

Pledge of Allegiance

4.

Approval of Agenda

5.

Audience Participation Period (limit 5 minutes per speaker)

6.

Reports from City Boards, Commissions and Committees

7.

Consent Agenda
a.
Approval of Minutes May 7, 2019
b.
Contract for Services with Singing Hills Landscape for Quincy Farm Irrigation
—

8.

Items Removed From Consent Agenda

9.

Unfinished Business

10.

New Business
a.
Cherry Hills Village Art Commission recommendation for sculpture-on-loan and
permanent art for City Hall
b.
2018 Audited Financial Statements

11.

Reports
a.
Mayor
b.
Members of City Council
c.
City Manager and Staff
(i)
Department Monthly Reports
d.
City Attorney

12.

Adjournment

Nntice:

Agenda is subject to ch,nge.
If you ssilI need speciI assistance in order to attend any of the City’s public meetings, please notify the City of Cherry Hills Village at 303-789-2541,48 hours in
advance.
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Minutes of the
City Council of the City of Cherry Hills Village, Colorado
Held on Tuesday, May 7, 2019 at 6:30 p.m.
At the Village Center
The City Council held a study session at 6:00 p.m.
Mayor Russell Stewart called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.

ROLL CALL
Mayor Russell Stewart, Councilors Randy Weil, Afshin Safavi, Al Blum, Mike Gallagher,
Dan Sheldon, and Katy Brown were present on roll call. Also present were City
Manager Jim Thorsen, Deputy City Manager and Public Works Director Jay Goldie, City
Attorney Kathie Guckenberger, Commander Pat Weathers, Parks and Recreation
Coordinator Emily Black, Finance Director Jessica Sager and Deputy City Clerk Tern
Littleford
Absent: none

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Council conducted the Pledge of Allegiance.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Mayor Pro Tem Katy Brown moved, seconded by Councilor Gallagher to approve the
agenda.
The motion passed unanimously.

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION PERIOD
None

REPORTS FROM CITY BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES
None

CONSENT AGENDA
Mayor Pro Tem Brown moved, seconded by Councilor Weil to approve the following
items on the Consent Agenda:
a.
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Resolution 16, Series 2019; Reappointing a Member to the Board of
Adjustment and Appeals
Resolution 17, Series 2019; Reappointing Members and Appointing a New
Member to the Parks, Trails and Recreation Commission
Resolution 18, Series 2019; Reappointing a Member to the Cherry Hills
Village Art Commission
Resolution 19, Series 2019; Reappointing Members to the Quincy Farm
Committee
Metro Denver Homeless Initiative Donation

The motion passed unanimously.

ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA
None

UNFINISHED BUSINESS
Mayor Stewart presented the request from Kent Denver for an Amendment to the 2018
Development Agreement to Eliminate from Exhibit D “Traffic Improvements” Conditions
B, C, and D and also Eliminate Exhibit F.
City Manager Jim Thorsen presented the staff report and explained that in September
2017 Kent Denver applied for an expanded use permit for a new building that would add
approximately 28,000 square feet to their campus. He said as part of the development
agreement, the City required that they perform a traffic study on Quincy Avenue. He
stated that traffic engineers from Matrix Design Group reviewed the levels of service for
the Kent Denver driveway at Quincy Avenue, and the intersection at Quincy Avenue
and Colorado Boulevard. He explained that the levels of service are much like the
school grades, A through F. It was determined that the levels of service at both of those
intersections are insufficient today and will remain that way in the future. He advised
that the Matrix Design Group was tasked with evaluating several options of mitigating
the traffic on Quincy Avenue. He noted that the City routinely receives several
complaints from residents regarding the congestion on Quincy. He stated at least six
options were studies that would allow Kent Denver’s driveway to remain in its current
location. Among those options would be to add a single lane roundabout at either the
driveway or Colorado Boulevard, and add left and right turn pockets along Quincy
Avenue as well as adding a uniformed police officer at different locations. City Manager
Thorsen said several other options that were evaluated included the realignment of the
Kent Denver’s driveway to Colorado Boulevard. This would combine the intersection
into one, rather than having two congested intersections. Options included adding a 4way stop at Colorado Boulevard in combination with a uniformed officer or installing a
traffic signal. He explained the traffic engineers determined realigning Kent Denver’s
driveway and installing a single-lane roundabout would provide the optimum
improvement as the Level of Service would improve from an F to a B, a vast
improvement. He stated the City Council asked for public input, and as a result denied
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the proposal to install a single-lane roundabout at Colorado Boulevard and Quincy. He
advised Kent Denver has since asked for an amendment to the Development
Agreement to eliminate conditions B, C, and D related to the roundabout and also to
eliminate one of the exhibits since the roundabout would not be constructed. He
explained that Condition B required the dedication of right of way for the roundabout
and if the roundabout was not constructed; the land would go back to Kent Denver after
eight years. He said Condition C stated that if the City did construct a roundabout, they
would provide notification to Kent Denver when the construction would begin and end,
and Kent Denver would have 60 days to complete a realignment of their driveway to tie
into the proposed roundabout. He mentioned the conditions of the development
agreement relieved Kent Denver from having a uniformed traffic control officer at that
location as a roundabout does not need one. He further stated that Condition D
required Kent Denver to submit engineer drawings for the realignment of their driveway
to ensure they are in conformance with Exhibit F which depicted the roundabout as well
as the realigned driveway for the school.
Jerry Walker, 4000 East Quincy Avenue, applicant and Associate Headmaster from
Kent Denver thanked the Council for the consideration of the removal of those sections
from the development agreement which involved the conveyance of land for the City.
He stated the school’s position was simple; if the City is no longer planning to build a
roundabout, a conveyance was no longer needed. He explained there would be two
reasons to keep the conveyance. One reason would be if the City were still planning on
building a roundabout, and if that was the case, he said the City should state that. He
said the school entered into an agreement with the City in good faith and they will honor
the agreement stating if the City is going to build a roundabout, they will convey the land
to them. He said the only other reason to keep the conveyance was if it had some other
value; that it could possibly be used as leverage in a negotiation so that the land could
be used in some other way. He explained that if this were the case, he had some
concerns about how that agreement was reached. He said if the real motivation was to
use the conveyance for leverage for other purposes, it was grossly unethical and
possibly illegal. He questioned the nature of the relationship that the school has always
enjoyed with the City, which is one of compromise and partnership. He explained that
in addition to the late start time on Wednesdays, one additional late start day will be
added to the next school year on Fridays to further ease traffic congestion in the
mornings. He said a delayed start tends to spread out the traffic flow from 8:00 to 9:00.
He explained that some of the current congestion has to do with Cherry Hills Village
Elementary School (CHVE) and all of the Cherry Creek School District moving their start
time to 8:00. He said that a permanent late start was considered but would impact after
school sports because of the lack of field lights. In addition to the late start days, the
school will be offering preferred parking to students who carpool, increasing the number
of bike racks, and encouraging bus ridership. He said between 30 and 55 kids per day
currently ride the bus to school. He explained that Kent Denver wants to be a good
neighbor and to continue the relationship with the City. Although a compromise was
reached a year and a half ago regarding the roundabout, Mr. Walker said they do not
feel they were the sole reason for the traffic problems in the City. The population
growth in Denver has added to the issue. He stated that Kent Denver capped their
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enrollment, and it would not increase with construction of the new building. He said
their enrollment was right around 700 and the plan was to stay at that level. Mr. Walker
stated that he was not authorized to negotiate any other terms and that if the City were
to use the conveyance for some other purpose, that is not in the spirit of compromise,
and it’s a bad faith effort by the City to leverage their power to extract something else
from the school. He again thanked Council for considering the removal of the sections
that have to do with the conveyance of their property to the City for the purpose of
building a roundabout. He reiterated that if the City no longer needed a roundabout,
they no longer need the conveyance.
Mayor Pro Tem Brown thanked Mr. Walker and stated that she appreciated the spirit of
compromise and hoped that they continue that moving forward. She said that
unequivocally, neither of the two reasons he suggested were ever discussed and were
not part of this conversation and she was taken aback by his mention of them.
Mr. Walker said according to previous Planning and Zoning (P&Z) minutes the feeling
expressed was that the conveyance could be used for some other purpose.
Mayor Pro Tem Brown advised that there was no indication by anyone at this meeting
or City staff that this was the case.
Mr. Walker stated he was glad that he could preempt any of that discussion because if
that was the case, they would convey the land tomorrow and be done. He said it would
become a political question for the residents of Cherry Hills Village and Council.
Mayor Pro Tern Brown assured Mr. Walker that was not the nature of this discussion.
She explained that the decision not to build a roundabout was decided in April 2018 and
the discussion had not resurfaced in any Council discussion since then. She said the
issue before Council was not about a roundabout, but about a request to modify a
development agreement that was negotiated as part of an expanded use application.
Mr. Walker stated the sections they are seeking to remove have to do with a
roundabout.
Mayor Pro Tem Brown said those sections were negotiated in response to one of the
standards for approval which specifically stated the applicant would be responsible for
mitigating and managing traffic and pedestrian safety, Standard #5, and it was
determined when the application came forward to Council in early 2018, that the
applicant did not satisfy that requirement because it provided no alternative to manage
traffic. She said City staff then negotiated with Kent Denver, who was represented by
counsel and that City Council was not part of those negotiations because they were
quasi-judicial.
Mr. Walker clarified that Kent Denver was not represented by counsel during the
negotiations.
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Mayor Pro Tern Brown stated that in Walker’s cornrnents at the February
he stated that he was represented by Otten Johnson.

Draft
20th

meeting

Mr. Walker clarified he had conferred with Otten Johnson about the questionable legal
standard regarding conferring a nexus on that traffic intersection based on the fact that
they were not increasing the number of students on use, and the questionable logic that
was used was that if Kent Denver eventually sold the property, that 28,000 square foot
property could be used for some other purpose, or in the future they could grow and
would therefore have an impact on traffic. He said at that point, when they sought
advice from Otten Johnson, they were clear that they did not see the nexus and they
thought that was a very defensible position on their end, but they were not represented
by Otten Johnson in negotiations with the City. He said those negotiations took place
directly between City Manager Thorsen and himself, and no one else was present.
Mayor Pro Tern Brown said Mr. Walker’s comments were not about nexus during that
conversation; they were simply that Kent Denver was represented by Otten Johnson.
Mr. Walker said he was glad he could advise Council about the nature of those
discussions.
Mayor Pro Tern Brown said Condition 5 stated the proposed use would not result in
unreasonable traffic congestion or create a safety hazard to vehicular or pedestrian
traffic and adequate provisions would be provided to manage any traffic related issues.
She said it was determined that the application did not meet the standard at the time so
negotiations continued. She stated the development agreement was brought forth to
City Council two meetings later on February 20, 2018. She advised at that time Mr.
Walker was asked if they were comfortable with the agreement Walker stated “We are
very comfortable with this agreement as written and do not seek any modification to this
agreement.” Mayor Pro Tern Brown asked what had changed.
Mr. Walker questioned why, if as Mayor Pro Tern Brown stated, the roundabout issue
was dead, and it was not reoccurring, and no one on the Council is interested in a
roundabout, why they need a conveyance.
Mayor Pro Tern Brown responded that the conveyance is Condition B, and she agreed
that the City has no need for the land in Condition B. She advised the land was not the
only thing achieved by that development agreement. She said that development
agreement was negotiated in an attempt to meet the traffic mitigation standard. She
asked Mr. Walker if he believed the City’s decision not to pursue a roundabout relieves
Kent Denver from doing any traffic management.
Mr. Walker reiterated the plans that will be implemented next year to mitigate traffic. He
said the school has not grown in enrollment from 2016 to 201 9 and therefore, traffic has
not increased. He said because of this, they have met the standard. He asked if the
City is no longer building a roundabout, why they need the conveyance.
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Mayor Pro Tern Brown agreed that Condition B, the conveyance of land was not
needed, but there were other conditions. She reiterated that the conveyance of land
was a specific proposal to address traffic management but eliminating that condition
should not relieve the requirement for any traffic mitigation. She said Mr. Walker has
stated that Kent Denver has no intention of increasing enrollment, but enrollment was
not something the City had control over. She stated Kent Denver could increase the
enrollment if they wanted and asked if Kent Denver would be willing to revise the
agreement to include a limit on enrollment. Mayor Pro Tern Brown commented a limit
on enrollment would solve the traffic problem because there would be no increase in
traffic.
Mr. Walker stated that in a previous development agreement they did agree that if the
student population ever increased by 15%, they would have to come back to City
Council before any other improvements were allowed. He said Kent Denver does not
have enough space to house that many students and therefore it is a defacto cap that is
already in existence. He questioned what Condition C related to other than the
roundabout.
Mayor Pro Brown answered Condition C would potentially realign the driveway or
potentially some other traffic solution.
Mr. Walker stated Condition C referred to realigning the driveway to intersect with a
roundabout.
Mayor Pro Tern Brown stated she would be happy to remove the reference to a
roundabout everywhere it is mentioned in the development agreement.
Mr. Walker advised removing the roundabout would eliminate Conditions B and C.
Mayor Pro Tern Brown confirmed that if there is not a land conveyance, Condition B and
Exhibit F could be omitted.
Mr. Walker asked what in the other conditions would be beneficial to keep.
Mayor Pro Tem Brown answered the potential to realign the driveway, or some other
traffic solution. She stated negotiating a contract during a City Council meeting was not
an appropriate forum and that the development agreement before Council tonight was
negotiated in an attempt to address traffic concerns. She stated that although Mr.
Walker disagreed that there are concerns, they do exist and the roundabout was not a
solution the City is forward with. She said she would be happy to remove the
roundabout from the agreement but was not in favor of eliminating the requirement to do
anything. She stated that she appreciated the ideas Mr. Walker proposed, but they
were part of the development agreement and they are not requirements to do anything.
She reiterated that the student enrollment was limited to 805 students, a 15% increase
of the current enrollment. She said that if the school is not going to increase the
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enrollment beyond 700, the development agreement could be revised again and the
possibility for traffic management goes away.
Mr. Walker stated limiting the enrollment in the current agreement was not an option
and he had not been authorized to accept any other negotiated term, nor was the
Council meeting the place to negotiate the agreement. Mr. Walker reiterated that Kent
Denver was not open to negotiating or revisiting enrollment caps. He said the alignment
issue Mayor Pro Tern Brown referred to was an alignment to a roundabout, therefore if
the Council wants to take out the roundabout, those sections would have to be
eliminated as well.
Mayor Pro Tern stated that in Mr. Walker’s comments from February 6th, he said he had
previously presented changing start times as an option and the City staff refused to
consider that as a valid option. She said changing the start times has become a
recurring theme in feedback received by City Council and asked if adjusting the start
time was off the table.
Mr. Walker said a 9:00 start time every day would destroy the outdoor sports program
unless they eliminated a significant portion of the academic day. He said the only way
that could be a viable solution was if lighting were added to the fields. He reiterated that
the compromises Kent Denver made were the two late start days. He stated that was a
significant change overlooked by the Planning & Zoning Commission (P&Z). He said
the congestion would be reduced four days out of seven for about 20 minutes. He
added this this would also allow them to keep their sports program.
Mayor Pro Tem Brown said another option that was discussed would be restricting
Quincy Avenue and Colorado Boulevard’s traffic to residents of Cherry Hills Village only.
She asked what percentage of Kent Denver’s students would be able to get to school if
that were the case.
Mr. Walker stated that was not an option presented by Kent Denver and added that
between one half and one third of their students live in the Cherry Hills Village.
Mayor Pro Tern Brown asked how the suggestions made by Kent Denver would
improve safety into and out of the driveway with conflicting left turns, combined with the
bike trail and pedestrians in the intersection.
Mr. Walker stated that a well-trained uniformed traffic control officer was as safe as it
could get, and also the most efficient. He said the school has already agreed to this
solution at their cost and that it is a viable, real solution that does improve traffic now,
and the safety at the intersection. He stated that there was an accident study done at
the intersection of Quincy Avenue and Colorado Boulevard as well as the intersection at
the entrance to the school and it was determined that these were not unusually unsafe
intersections.
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Mayor Pro Tern Brown questioned if Mr. Walker believed any of the proposals he was
suggesting would have an impact on safety.
Mr. Walker stated that if more students arrived at school via busses and carpools, there
would be less traffic actions at the intersection. He said he continuation of a uniformed
traffic control officer was something they have already agreed to and was in the best
interest of both the City and Kent Denver.
Mayor Pro Tern Brown asked what percentage students carpool.
Mr. Walker answered between 5 and 25% depending on the sports season, faculty and
siblings.
Mayor Pro Tem Brown asked what effect priority parking would have on traffic.
Mr. Walker stated that the effects were not known but he expected it would take
approximately 20 drivers off the road. Mr. Walker said new students would be
encouraged to carpool.
Mayor Pro Tern Brown asked how many students rode bikes.
Mr. Walker stated that weather was a big determining factor in students that ride bikes
and advised about 15-20 students ride their bike on a nice day.
Mayor Pro Tern Brown commented that the lack of bike racks was not a deterrent, and
that biking would not make a significant impact on decreasing traffic.
Mr. Walker stated that Kent Denver was making incremental improvements and the
biggest change would be another late start day. He said that most 16-year olds do not
want to ride their bikes and that middle school students bike more.
Mayor Pro Tern Brown said the P&Z meetings were not recorded and the minutes are
summary minutes and not a transcription of the meeting. She asked Mr. Walker to
clarify the following statement made by him at the meeting, “Walker stated it would be
difficult for the Kent Denver School Board of Trustees to accept conditions
recommended by City Council.”
Mr. Walker advised the first and second motions failed, and the third motion was a
hybrid that the City recommended which included eliminating those conditions if Kent
Denver would consider an enrollment cap or another way to mitigate traffic. He said his
response to P&Z was that those conditions would be very difficult. He stated some of
the items that were identified were things they are already doing and also included a
laundry list of things that might happen in the future.
Mayor Pro Tern Brown advised she understood it as a request to do all the things
Walker just stated and more. She asked if Kent Denver expected the City to amend the
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development agreement by removing the conditions and not expect the school to assist
with traffic mitigation.
Mr. Walker replied there were several things the school will be implementing to mitigate
traffic.
Mayor Pro Tern Brown asked if Kent Denver would be willing to put any of those items
in the development agreement.
Mr. Walker replied no.
Councilor Safavi clarified that Kent Denver had a piece of land they conveyed to the
City to build a roundabout. He continued that the City was not going to construct a
roundabout and Kent Denver was asking the City to return the land to them and to
remove the conditions that were part of that deal.
Mr. Walker confirmed that this was correct.
Councilor Safavi commented that Mr. Walker was not there to tell City Council how to fix
the traffic in Cherry Hills Village, Arapahoe County, Denver or the State of Colorado.
Councilor Weil confirmed that Mr. Walker was authorized to negotiate. He further
commented that there are 700 students and Kent Denver’s future plans were not to go
beyond that, yet there was no willingness to negotiate what he thought should be a
threshold rather than a cap on enrollment. He thought it was a moot point since the
school suffers the most because of the traffic problems. He asked if the cap of 700
students was a moment in time and if there could be a possibility that the student count
would increase.
Mr. Walker said that admissions at a private school are more of an art than a science
and depend on matriculation rates and yield rates. He stated that that the variation in
enrollment ranged from 695 to 715. He said 700 was a consistent number. He
explained that if the enrollment grew to 805 students, a 15% increase, the school would
have to come to City Council to get permission to construct a new building to
accommodate that kind of growth. He said he could not imagine the school growing to
that size, without building a whole new school.
Councilor Weil said that does not give him direction on how to interpret the 805 versus
the 700 student cap.
Mr. Walker stated that even if the cap were at 722, the school would run the risk of
violating the terms of the agreement or having to accept students in another fashion
because there is that plus or minus range.
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Councilor Well thanked Mr. Walker for his explanation and his efforts to mitigate the
issue expeditiously. He stated that Kent Denver is an asset to the community, and it
was appreciated.
Councilor Gallagher stated that status quo was good, and that the City should preserve
what it has. He said he was in favor of the amendment and it would close a sad
chapter, which started out with an expanded use application for building and ended up
as a very contentious and embarrassing scenario for the community. He asked if the
amendment passed and in ten years the community continued to grow would Kent
Denver be a good partner to the community.
Mr. Walker stated that yes, the school absolutely would. He agreed that it had been a
sad chapter and did not like that had turned adversarial. He commented that it did not
make the school eager to enter into a partnership with their adversary. He said in the
past when the City or community has asked, they have always said yes to things like
keeping the campus open to function as a park for the community, or other city related
events they have hosted. He stated that they are looking to partner with the City with
the possibility of using some of the property for open space. He said the structure of the
development agreement process makes it adversarial and encouraged the Council to
revise it. He further stated they would be willing to assist with the revision process. He
said if the City came to them with a true solution and it was a true partnership, not one
where someone has the power of imminent domain, they would be very willing to
participate in those conversations.
Councilor Sheldon thanked Mr. Walker and Kent Denver for being a good steward of the
land. He commented that it was a hot topic for Council, staff and the community. He
stated there were a couple dozen emails in their file and said the feedback was good.
He explained, through the fault of no one, the Council rushed to a conclusion so that
ground could be broken on a new building in order to meet the school opening date. He
said the City ran with the idea of a roundabout until hundreds of people expressed their
opposition. He stated in hindsight, the language in the agreement could have been
tailored to reflect “in the event of a traffic solution is found that meets with our joint
approval then the following conditions would apply.” He said the land would then be
dedicated to meet that improvement, Kent Denver would agree to realign their driveway
and the City would agree to make public improvements on the public side of the street.
He stated that if there had been time to do that jointly, the situation would have ended
up very differently. He questioned, since the City does not need that right of way, if
Kent Denver would agree to a plan to realign the driveway, or some other traffic solution
in the future if needed. He stated that Council wants Kent Denver to get the certificate
of occupancy and also to get back in the good graces with Kent Denver; however it was
incumbent upon Council to protect the citizens and those passing through. He
commented that in five to ten years there could be an interchange or major realignment
on 1-25 the traffic resulting in the traffic on Quincy Avenue to double or triple, which
would not necessarily be a result of Kent Denver. He stated he was not looking for a
traffic solution today but would like assurance that Kent Denver and the City could work
together moving forward.
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Mr. Walker stated the pressure to solve the traffic issues came from Kent Denver. He
said the school has an amazing relationship with the City and that they were willing to
take a thoughtful look at traffic solutions if it was a true partnership.
Councilor Blum asked if there was a way to memorialize Kent Denver’s commitment to
work as a partner and find a long-term solution in a development agreement.
Mr. Walker stated in principle, yes, and it would show good faith on part of the City if the
conveyance was removed. He said if they went into an agreement that was not a
development agreement, but one that looked at traffic solutions over a period of time, he
could take that to the board of trustees. He said that students and faculty are affected
by traffic and he would support a solution that moves traffic more efficiently, but does
not encourage more traffic to flow through the City.
Councilor Blum stated that Kent Denver’s commitment is important. He asked if they
were committed to adding a second late start day.
Mr. Walker confirmed that they were committed.
Councilor Blum asked describe how many periods students would have during the day
and what the start and end times would be.
Mr. Walker said it would be a six period day that would start at 9:00 and upper school
sports would start at 4:00. He said on late start days, the periods would be shorter and
the sports programs would run later.
Councilor Blum stated the word roundabout would be taken out completely and asked if
they would consider realigning their entry to another location as a long term solution.
Mr. Walker stated he would not consider that option tonight, but would discuss it as a
long term solution. He said the risks with that option could be the unintended
consequence of losing some of the open space.
Councilor Blum suggested another long term solution could be a 4-way stop.
Mr. Walker said an uncontrolled 4-way stop does not improve traffic any more than a
uniformed traffic control officer.
Mayor Stewart added that the letters received by residents regarding the development
agreement would become part of the public record.
Mayor Stewart opening the Public Hearing at 7:30 p.m.
Earl Hoellen, 3 Vista Road, urged Council to deny approval of Kent’s request to amend
the development agreement. He explained a little over a year ago, the City negotiated
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the agreement with Kent as part of an expanded use permit. He said traffic mitigation
was one of issues that was discussed at the time. He said several possible alternatives
to mitigate the traffic issues were considered including revised enrollment triggers,
revised start and dismissal times, realignment of Kent’s entrance irrespective of the type
of intersection installed at Colorado Boulevard and Quincy Avenue, and others. He said
some of these alternatives were not acceptable to Kent, which Mr. Walker has
confirmed during his statements, that would have resulted in something that didn’t
involve the transfer of land. He stated the negotiations continued and led to the terms
currently in the development agreement before Council tonight, and that Kent Denver
would transfer some land to the City, and if within 8 years the City built a roundabout,
Kent would commit to realigning their driveway to that intersection. He said if the City
did not build a roundabout within 8 years, the land would revert back to Kent. He noted
that the 8-year time condition was added near the end of the negotiations, limiting the
flexibility and the time the City would have to deal with the traffic problems at that
location. He said that as a former Council Member, this was a concern to him because
the previous Council did not know when it would be able to proceed since it was always
going to be subject to public input. He added the previous Council did take steps to
proceed apace with that project, but after getting significant opposition from the public,
Council decided not to proceed. He said at no time, however, did the previous Council
decide that if the project couldn’t happen right away, then they didn’t want the public to
have the option to consider such a project in the future. He noted that while the public
clearly did not want a roundabout in early 201 8, they also still recognized that there was
a traffic problem that needed to be solved, and they still do. He said he has no doubt
that this Council, like the previous Council, would not proceed with this project without
widespread public support. As such, he stated, the project was not on the table. He
stated no one has any idea what traffic conditions might be like in 2026. He further
added that no one knows what the citizens of Cherry Hills Village might think about
traffic problems 2026 and how to solve them. He said in all likelihood, no one sitting on
the Council tonight would be sitting there in 2026. He stated it was always intended that
this provision of the development agreement would give the City an option to deal with
traffic problems at that location, adding that options have value and that optionality is
what gives organizations the chance to optimize solutions. He said to simply give away
an option like this is no different than giving away any other asset of the City. He said
he is not against the City renegotiating the agreement with Kent to the extent that Kent
would be willing to reconsider some of the things he mentioned earlier and make
commitments. He said some of those things in combinations would seem a reasonable
tradeoff for revising the current provisions. He suggested that rather than transferring
the land right now, make a commitment to transfer it sometime in the future, if the City
decides to build a roundabout, or not, do something in exchange for that and change
the time frame from eight to 15 years. He explained that way there would be no transfer
of land, no reversion and the City would get additional time. He said this provision,
negotiated in good faith, gives the City a significant option to deal with traffic in the
future, if the public so desires, which has always been the case. He added that it has
real value to the City and shouldn’t be given away. He recommended that Council vote
not to approve the amendment as it was written and thereafter if thought fit, to sit down
with Kent to renegotiate a broader agreement with regard to traffic mitigation. He
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mentioned that he does not consider the P&Z minutes official and they did not
accurately reflect what happened at the meeting. He said he did not understand the
comments made about leveraging by Chairman LaMair at that meeting. He agreed with
Mayor Pro Tem Brown that at no time, certainly on the previous Council, was there a
discussion about leveraging anything in the agreement or to do anything other than deal
with traffic at that location. He said the roundabout was only part of the agreement
because it was the only way that Kent, at the time, was willing to talk about realignment
of their driveway. He said if they are willing to talk about and commit otherwise, then it
would need to be part of the agreement. He stated the agreement had value to the City
going forward, and for future Councils citizens.
Laura Christman, 18 Cherry Lane Drive, said she doesn’t care whether or not there is a
roundabout. She said the issue was traffic and safety at the time. She stated that the
City was not going to improve traffic and that most of the complaints came from Kent
Denver parents who were objecting to how long it took to get their children to school.
She said that traffic was something that most of the residents of Cherry Hills Village
were accepting of and it made it less desirable for citizens of other communities to drive
through the City. She stated that Kent Denver benefits most from traffic mitigation. She
commented that if the community and Kent do not care about real traffic mitigation then
it should go away, which is what Council decided before. She stated that as a result,
before the Council was a proposal to amend the agreement, but it does not take away
the safety issue. She said if safety or extreme traffic becomes an issue, that there
should be some kind of enforceable agreement. She said she was present because of
the possibility of using lights on the field as leverage. She reiterated that Kent stated
many times that the only way to deal with true traffic mitigation is by installing field
lights. She said many residents have contacted her in regards to this possibility. She
asked if that there was any possibility of the City and Kent amending the agreement in a
way that involves traffic lights, that there be a broad public meeting so all in the
community can have input.
Laura Lopez, 4245 South Forest Circle, voiced her approval of the amendment and
asked for a straight forward vote. She said since there would be no roundabout every
condition should be removed in relation to it. She stated that she researched the legal
issues regarding the conveyance and that she was troubled by the potential liability for
the City if the taking of Kent’s land occurs. She added that Kent’s new building had no
impact on traffic and yet the permit for the building was conditioned on taking the land
from Kent for a completely unrelated traffic solution. She said in her legal opinion it is
possible that the condition violated the 5th Amendment and other state laws. In addition,
she said it would set a dangerous precedent for private property rights in Cherry Hills
Village. She stated she was disturbed at the attempt to renegotiate the agreement at
the meeting, again focusing on traffic. She said it was the same legal problem; there is
no nexus of the building in question and the traffic issue the City wanted to solve. She
stated using an unconstitutional taking as a bargaining chip to get something from Kent
would put the City in legal jeopardy. She said land conveyance is not an asset, but a
liability and the citizens of Cherry Hills Village did not want to pay legal bills for
defending the mistake. She said she was distressed by how Kent Denver was treated
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throughout the process adding that they have opened their lands to the public, and it
was an oasis of undeveloped land. She further stated that the City should be proud of
the public and private school options in the City and there should be a spirit of
cooperation between the two. She asked Council to approve the amendment without
any additional conditions.
Liz Collins, 1 Haystack Row, expressed her concern about how hostile the discussion
had become and asked why Kent Denver was being held accountable for the traffic
problems. She asked why the same questions weren’t being asked of Cherry Hills
Village Elementary (CHVE) parents and staff. She said seven to eight years ago she
asked CDOT to extend the light at Quincy Avenue and University Boulevard in order to
improve traffic flow, and their observation was that CHVE parents do not carpool. She
stated that it was not just a Kent Denver problem. She added that installing school
lights, like those at St. Mary’s School could reduce cut through traffic. She commented
that changing start times was a revolving issue, stating that Cherry Creek High School
has changed their start time three times since her children became students there. She
noted that although Kent’s traffic mitigation initiatives were not in the development
agreement, if there was a collaborative relationship between the City and Kent, it would
not have to be in writing to be effective.
Chris Haymans, 4050 South Hudson Way, said he understood that options have value
but it should be a collaborative partnership between the City and Kent. He said he
attended the hearing when Kent was granted their building permit. He concurred that
this was an embarrassing moment for the City and hoped the City could move past it.
Mayor Stewart closed the Public Hearing at 7:47 p.m.
Councilor Safavi thanked everyone who voiced their opinions regarding the issue. He
added that Kent Denver has been a big part of the community for almost 100 years that
they are there to stay. He stated that Kent has been a great partner to the City that has
educated not only residents but citizens from surrounding communities. He noted the
relationship was solid and strong, however, that solidarity was not evident now. He
stated the relationship was important to maintain based on the residents’ passionate
support for Kent. He said the relationship was long in the making and based on mutual
trust and consent involving open discussions. He stated in such partnerships, seeking
leverage for influence in later negotiations is unacceptable. He added the City does not
need to keep the conditions on a piece of land that does not belong to them. He stated
the land needed to be returned to its rightful owner, Kent Denver, and asked that the
Council reverse the mistake.
Councilor Safavi moved, seconded by Councilor Weil to approve the requested
amendment of the 2018 Development Agreement for the Kent Denver Upper School
building project by eliminating conditions B, C, and D of Exhibit D and removing Exhibit
F.
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Mayor Pro Tern Brown stated that the City was not holding Kent Denver responsible for
the City’s traffic problems. She explained that the original proposal was that Kent would
construct all of this at their own expense and everyone on the Council at the tirne said
that was not appropriate. She stated the way the development agreement was currently
worded was that, despite Kent’s assurances, the student enrollment would not increase,
but Kent can increase their enrollment by 105 students without any input from the
community or traffic mitigation, resulting in an additional 200 to 300 trips per day
through that intersection. She said this was, is and always has been about traffic
mitigation. She didn’t think anyone spoke in favor of requiring the land dedication, and
as a result there is a willingness on the part of Council to consider other alternatives
which would amend the agreement. She said she has heard a lot about working in
partnership, however, no consideration of alternative solutions is not a partnership and
would involve a discussion about what works for everyone. She said the City does not
need the land, but it does need to solve the traffic problem, which she has heard from
many residents. She said Council heard from hundreds of people that a roundabout
was not wanted, and fewer than five of those people said they did not want to do
anything. She said that doing nothing was what was before Council tonight. She noted
that Council did not have the solution and concurred with Councilor Sheldon that
Council was being rushed to make a decision, adding that the original decision to table
the roundabout was made over a year ago. She said the request to remove the
conditions could have been brought forth at any point, but it was brought forth instead
after the TOO had already been issued adding to the hastiness. She said she had
learned from experience that rushing to make a decision did not work out well.
Mayor Pro Tern Brown moved to include an amendment restricting the enrollment of
Kent Denver to 720 students.
Mayor Stewart asked the other members of Council if there was a second to Mayor Pro
Tern Brown’s amended motion.
There was not a second to the motion so the motion fell to the floor.
Councilor Gallagher applauded Kent Denver for constructing a beautiful building that
met their purposes to remain competitive. He stated they started with a building permit
that went in a bad direction. He added he was in support of the amendment and noted
that the community had spoken. He further added that the community did not want a
roundabout, yet they want to support Kent. He said sometimes the best thing to do is
nothing. He stated maintaining the pastoral environment of Cherry Hills Village was
critical as evidenced by the over 1 00 letters Council received. He said Kent Denver,
which had been in the Village since 1922, was a very good neighbor and they are
accomplished at promoting inclusiveness, not exclusiveness. He added that their open
campus was appreciated and the value was recognizable. He said as a City it is
important to maintain and foster this strong relationship. He stated that by adding a
second late start day, preferred parking for those who carpool, adding more bike racks
and encouraging bussing, Kent Denver was putting the rewards in the right places and
he thanked them for their effort.
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Councilor Sheldon stated the City and Council were in a tough spot and he was torn.
He proposed that Council take two weeks to think about this issue rather than be
rushed. He stated this might give Council the opportunity to discuss changes to the
development agreement that could be amiable to both the City and Kent. He said the
proposal doesn’t work as is because the intent of the document was to work
collaboratively on a traffic improvement. He noted the flaw was that Council specifically
called the solution a roundabout. He said if Council had called it a traffic improvement,
the right of way would be a separate issue. He stated he thought the majority of Council
was willing to give up on Condition B which was the requirement for Kent to dedicate
that land to the City. He stated that the issue was how to solve a potential problem that
may occur in the future. He did not want to make a motion without collaboration from
Kent Denver. He was worried about the certificate occupancy but stated that they could
operate under a temporary certificate of occupancy for a couple of more weeks.
Councilor Blum stated there were four points in the report that Kent Denver was already
committed to doing, that were not in the development agreement and he concurred with
Councilor Sheldon that it was wise to take two weeks to discuss the issue with them.
He said the City does not want the land, and it belonged to Kent Denver.
Councilor Blum moved, seconded by Councilor Sheldon to table the decision to approve
the requested amendment of the 2018 Development Agreement for the Kent Denver
Upper School building project by eliminating conditions B, C, and D of Exhibit D and
removing Exhibit F to May 21, 2019.
Mayor Stewart said he believed there were constitutional issues. He said the
agreement tied a legislative decision on whether or not to build a roundabout with quasi
judicial decision on this one piece of property that belongs to Kent. He said whether the
City were to build roads in an effort to solve traffic problems is a legislative issue that
should not be decided within the context of the development agreement. He said
imposing conditions on the development agreement for Kent Denver to solve legislative
problems is a problem. He said the difficulties result because there is no nexus and no
proportionality for what Council is asking Kent to do. He stated the fundamental issue
to imposing conditions at this time would be a violation of the Regulatory Impairment of
Property Rights Act (RIPRA). Section 1 of the Act states in “imposing conditions upon
the granting of land-use approvals, no local government shall require an owner of
private property to dedicate real property to the public, or pay money to a public entity in
an amount that is determined on an individual and discretionary basis, unless there is
an essential nexus between the dedication or payment and a legitimate local
government interest, and the dedication or payment is roughly proportional both in
nature and extent to the impact of the proposed use or development of such property.
This section shall not apply to any legislatively formulated assessment, fee, or charge
that is imposed on a broad class of property owners by local government”. He added
section 2 states “no local government shall impose any discretionary condition upon a
land-use approval unless the condition is based upon duly adopted standards that are
sufficiently specific to ensure that the condition is imposed in a rational and consistent
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manner”. Mayor Stewart said the second section of the Act is most important because
the City had not adopted any of the necessary standards required to start a discussion
with Kent about what the City can do regarding conditions imposed on them. He said it
would be improper to have the discussion in context to a development agreement or the
City would violate RIPRA and there would be consequences for doing so. He agreed
that there are issues, but did not agree the City would need to make it easy to allow for
cut through traffic. He further added that the Master Plan states that cut through traffic
should be reduced. He said at this point if Council were to approve conditions they
would be in legal jeopardy. He concluded that the City cannot adopt conditions without
standards.
City Attorney Guckenberger asked to confirm a date and time certain for the motion.
Councilor Blum stated May 21, 2019.
Mayor Pro Tern Brown questioned if the item was a land-use application.
City Attorney Guckenberger stated the development agreement was entered into as
part of the criteria that was pursuant to the required process for the land use approval.
Mayor Pro Tem Brown clarified that the application and land-use was granted and is
moving forward.
City Attorney Guckenberger stated this was true.
Mayor Pro Tem Brown asked if changing a development agreement pertained to landuse. She said in 2006, in a previous development agreement, Kent Denver had a
restriction on Southmoor parking, and due to some changes in state law, came back to
the City and asked to have that provision removed and it was renegotiated and
changed.
City Attorney Guckenberger stated it could have been changed via administrative
process, but she was not aware of the history regarding the previous agreement. She
said the agreement entered into in a quasi-judicial process and in order to protect due
process for all parties involved the City Attorney’s position has been to approach the
agreement through the quasi-judicial form.
Mayor Pro Tern Brown asked the City Attorney’s opinion on nexus.
City Attorney Guckenberger said it was the City Attorney’s legal position that a valid
contractual agreement had been entered into by both parties. She said she did have an
email from legal counsel on behalf of Kent Denver that requested specific amendments
to the development agreement, and some were accepted and some were not. She
stated she had some legal authority that the negotiation takes the conditions out of the
imposition context and into a mutually beneficial negotiated agreement, on which there
are benefits and obligations and that is still the City Attorney’s position today.
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Mayor Steward stated that Kent Denver no longer agreed to those conditions, so
anything the City imposed would be a violation of RIPRA.
Councilor Blum stated that was why he moved to table the issue for two weeks.
Councilor Weil said Council was told the enrollment would be 700, so Council would be
solving a phantom problem. He asked what the effects would be if it went up to 805.
He said Council had assurances from Kent Denver that they would be willing to work
with the City if traffic became a bigger problem. He said that 60% of the traffic problems
on Quincy Avenue are because of Kent Denver, and Kent Denver is 100% affected. He
said as a result, Kent Denver would be coming to the City for help and did not
understand what would be accomplished by prolonging the decision for two weeks.
Councilor Safavi stated that in the spirit of partnership the City should give Kent Denver
their land back without conditions. There were conditions with a roundabout, and since
there would not be a roundabout, Council should give it back. He said Council should
make it equal ground and then discuss the traffic.
Councilor Sheldon stated these are all reasons that the item should be tabled. He said
Council should take the time to study the RIPRA case law as stated by the Mayor. He
expressed concern that the City was approached only 60 days ago about this issue
even though the deal was made over a year ago, and said he would like time to think
about it.
Mayor Stewart questioned if the issue was tabled, it would not need to be re-noticed.
City Attorney Guckenberger confirmed this was true if it was set for a date and time
certain.
Councilor Gallagher stated this was a good test of the relationship, and that he was
certain Kent Denver would be trustworthy over a long period of time.
The following votes were recorded for the motion to table the decision to approve the
requested amendment of the 2018 Development Agreement for the Kent Denver Upper
School building project by eliminating conditions B, C, and D of Exhibit D and removing
Exhibit Fto May 21, 2019:
Safavi
Weil
Brown
Gallagher
Sheldon
Blum
Stewart
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Vote on: 3 ayes. 4 nays. The motion failed
The following votes were recorded to the motion approve the requested amendment of
the 2018 Development Agreement for the Kent Denver Upper School building project by
eliminating conditions B, C, and D of Exhibit D and removing Exhibit F:
Satavi
Weil
Brown
Gallagher
Sheldon
Blum
Stewart

Yes
Yes
No
Yes
No
No
Yes

Vote on: 4 ayes. 3 nays. The motion carried

NEW BUSINESS
None

REPORTS
Mayor’s Report
Mayor Stewart said he reviewed the environmental assessment from the FAA and
Appendix I sections 5.2 and 5.3 indicate that if the new flight path is adopted, Cherry
Hills Village would see a decrease in noise and Jefferson and other counties would see
an increase. He said the FAA will hold more study sessions and he encouraged people
to attend. He noted it was great news if it was true. He stated the study areas were
broken down into areas such as: Allan Hutto Memorial Commons, CHVE, Dahlia Hollow
Park, St. Mary’s School, Cherry Hills Country Club, and Southmoor Park and all areas
would have a decrease in noise. He cautioned that the City should be careful and
understand what the conditions were, however, it was potentially good news. He
advised the Arapahoe County Shareback meeting is June 28th and all cities receiving
shareback funds were invited. He stated Sherriff Brown would hold a meeting May 16th
at 6:30 regarding the need for new county jail and courthouse. He said he would be
attending the Colorado Municipal League Conference June 1921st and that City
Attorney Guckenberger would also attend. He commented he had been speaking to
Denver Water regarding issues with Quincy Farm and he has provided them with the
well report and irrigation plans. He reported that they will give the City a water
assessment in return for contract rights. He also advised he met with Bill Klingensmith
regarding flooding issues from several years ago and Mr. Klingensmith had identified
they are getting infiltration in their sewer system and in the sump pumps, which are a
violation of the code. Mr. Klingensmith was asking for the City’s help in redirecting the
water from the sump pumps to the sanitary sewer system. He talked to City Manager
Thorsen regarding notifying HOAs when permits have been issued. He said his HOA
May7,2019
19

City Council

Draft

Draft

Draft

newsletter pictured a bald eagle, wild turkeys and a red fox in Buell Mansion. He
mentioned he would like to set up regular office hours, stating those hours would
probably be on Mondays at 9:00.

Members of City Council
Councilor Blum stated there were two more Denver Metroplex FAA meetings at
Arapahoe County.
Mayor Pro Tern Brown stated that regardless of the numbers in the FAA report, there is
a concentrated flight path over Cherry Hills Village and the flights are dispersed, which
is indicated in the drawing. She said the arrival path will produce flights directly over the
City. She cautioned Council from changing course and urged them to continue to fight
the issue. She said it was also important to look at Centennial Airport and their flights.
She reminded the Council that May 15th is a meeting regarding the potential crosswalk
that will be installed at Dahlia Street and South Hudson Way. She said the crosswalk
was requested by residents in the Cherry Hills North neighborhood, but many people
are not happy about the impacts of having large crosswalk signs in their yards.
Councilor Weil mentioned he has asked the impacted HOA to show plans of what they
would like to do with regards to the security shack. He said the problem is the City’s
code would not allow the building permit to be issued and BOAA has suggested that
Council revise the code. He will recommend to the HOA that both processes be
conducted on a parallel basis. He was hoping to have this process to the Council
members by mid-May to early June.
Mayor Stewart commented that the community shelter was a method of keeping eyes
on one’s own community and was a positive plan.

City Manager & Staff
City Manager Thorsen reminded Council and the audience that there was a Volunteer
Recognition Celebration on Saturday, May 11th from 12:00 to 4:00 p.m. He stated that
all current and past members of Council, Boards and Commissions had been invited.
He said he would follow up on the security shelter issue, and that he had been in
contact with City Attorney Guckenberger to discuss and explore additional options.

City Attorney
No report
ADJOURNMENT
The meeting adjourned at 8:37 p.m.
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Russell 0. Stewart, Mayor

Tern Littleford, Deputy City Clerk
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CHERRY HILLs VILLAGE
CoLo1Do
2450 E. Quincy Avenue
Cherry Hills Village, CO 80113
www.cherryhillsvillage.com

Village Center
Telephone 303-789-2541
FAX 303-761-9386

ITEM: 7b

MEMORANDUM

TO:

HONORABLE MAYOR STEWART AND MEMBERS OF CITY COUNCIL

FROM:

JAY GOLDIE, DEPUTY CITY MANAGERIPUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

SUBJECT: CONTRACT FOR SERVICES WITH SINGING HILL LANDSCAPE, INC FOR
IRRIGATION INSTALLATION AT QUINCY FARM
DATE:

MAY2I,2019

ISSUE
Should City Council approve the contract
irrigation installation at Quincy Farm?

for services

with Singing Hill

Landscaping Inc. for

the

DISCUSSION
On May 7, 2019 the City accepted bids for the Quincy Farm Irrigation Construction Project. The
project includes the installation of new ilTigation systems for the Farm. The Project was
originally bid out in 2018 but was cancelled following the bid opening as staff had concerns with
the costs. The system has been redesigned to utilize water from the pond/well and when
necessary can be switched over to the existing taps at the Anderson and Hopkins houses to water
the lawns immediately adjacent to these homes. This redesign eliminated the need to purchase a
separate irrigation tap for the property. The pump at the pond will be replaced outside of this
contract by staff and will include the installation of a more efficient filter system.

The following bids were received for the project:

COMPANY

BID AMOUNT

SINGING HILLS LANDSCAPE

$142,200.00

DESIGNSCAPES COLORADO

$142,450.00

PERFORMANCE CONSTRUCTION

$196,500.00

The Quincy Farm Committee recommended moving forward with irrigation installation in 2017,
when the City first applied for an Arapahoe County Open Space grant associated with the
(;:\cir
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project. The Committee receives updates on the project at each meeting. At the April 2019
meeting, the Committee was updated about the bid opening and the two water sources for the
new design. No Committee members voiced concerns.
BUDGET IMPACT
The ilTigation project is part of a larger improvement project for Quincy Farm and is being
funded by a grant from Arapahoe County Open Space. This grant was awarded in 2017 and
included tree trimming and removal as well as the irrigation improvements. The total grant
project was $265,000.00, with $1 87,800.00 being provided by Arapahoe County. The original
cost for the ilTigation portion of the project was $205,000.00.

The total proposed cost for the redesigned project is $166,193.00 which includes the work being
performed by staff in-house to retrofit the pump house. The cost for the new equipment and
installing a new water line from the pump house to connect to the new irrigation system is
S23,993.00. There is a total of$l87,800.00 in the 2019 Budget for this portion of the project, and
S 187,800.00 budgeted in the same account as revenue. (The grant is paid out on a reimbursement
basis.) Staff has submitted a budget modification request to Arapahoe County Open Space for
approval of the lower cost of the grant project.
STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Staff is requesting approval of the Contract for Services with Singing Hills Landscape Inc. in the
amount of$l42,200.00, plus an Owner contingency in the amount of $7,100.00 (5%) for a total
maximum expenditure of$ 149,300.00. The maximum cost of the project, including the pumphouse work, will be $173,293.00.
RECOMMENDED MOTION
“I move to approve the Contract for Services with Singing Hills Landscape Inc. in the amount of
$142,200.00 plus a $7,100.00 Owner contingency for a total maximum expenditure of
$149,300.00 and authorize the expenditure of these funds.”
ATTACHMENTS

Exhibit A: Contract for Services
Exhibit B: Bid Form
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EXHIBIT A

EXHIBITA:

STANDARD FORM OF CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

CITY OF
CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE
City of Cherry Hills Village Project No. 2019-004
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT
FOR THE FOLLOWING PROJECT:
2019 Quincy Farm Irrigation Installation

This Construction Contract (“Contract”), effective this 21’ day of May, 2019, is made and
entered into by and between Singing Hills, Inc. dba Singing Hills Landscape, Inc. (hereinafter,
“Contractor”), a corporation organized pursuant to the laws of the State of Colorado and having a
principal office address located at 16797 E. 2” Ave., Suite C-102 Aurora, CO 80011 and the CITY OF
CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE (hereinafter, “City” or “Owner”), a home-rule municipal corporation of
the State of Colorado, having an address of 2450 East Quincy Avenue, Cheny Hills Village, Colorado
80113 (collectively, the City and Contractor are refened to herein as the “Parties”).
In consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, the Parties agree as follows:
PART 1- WORK; TIME
1.01
The Contractor agrees to furnish all of the technical, administrative, professional, and other labor,
all supplies and materials, equipment, printing, vehicles, local travel, office space and facilities, testing
and analyses, calculations, and any other facilities or resources necessary to perform in a workmanlike
manner all Work required by the Contract Documents.
1.02
The Contractor agrees to undertake the performance of the Work within ten (10) days following
the Notice of Award and agrees that the Work will be completed within twenty (20) working days
(holidays, weekends, and inclement weather(as determined by Project Manager) excluded of the
date of the Notice to Proceed unless the contract time is extended by the City as provided in the Contract
Documents.
1 .03
The Parties agree that, in any section in which the Contractor prepares any document for “the
approval of the City,” such subsequent approval by the City does not mean that City is responsible for the
accuracy, thoroughness, or judgment contained in the document. The City does not waive the right to
hold the Contractor responsible for the accuracy, thoroughness, or judgment expressed in the document,
as it is expressly agreed by the Parties that the City is relying on the expertise of the Contractor for the
timely completion of the Work required by the Contract Documents.

PART 2- CONTRACT PRICE AND PAYMENT

2.01
The City shall pay the Contractor for performance of the Work in accordance with the Contract
Documents the amount(s) shown on Contractor’s Form of Bid not to exceed One Hundred Forty-Two
Thousand Two Hundred Dollars and No Cents ($142,200.00).
2.02
The City shall make payments as set forth in Article 9 of the General Conditions, subject to the
City’s obligation to retain a portion of the payments until final completion and acceptance by the City of
all Work included in the Contract Documents.
2.03
Prior to final payment, all Work specified by the Contract Documents must be completed.
Payment shall be made only after the procedure specified by the General Conditions is completed.
2.04
The City represents that either an appropriation for the price specified in this Construction
Contract has been made by the City Council or that sufficient funds have otherwise been made available
for the payment of this Construction Contract.
2.05
The Parties understand and acknowledge that the City of Cheriy Hills Village is subject to Article
X § 20 of the Colorado Constitution (“TABOR”). The parties do not intend to violate the terms and
requirements of TABOR by the execution of this Contract. It is understood and agreed that this Contract
does not create a multi-fiscal year direct or indirect debt or obligation within the meaning of TABOR and,
therefore, notwithstanding anything in this Contract to the contrary, all payment obligations of the City
are expressly dependent and conditioned upon the continuing availability of the funds beyond the term of
the City’s current fiscal period ending upon the next succeeding December 31. Financial obligations of
the City payable after the current fiscal year are contingent upon funds for that purpose being
appropriated, budgeted, and otherwise made available in accordance with the rules, regulations, and
resolutions of the City of Cheriy Hills Village and other applicable law. Upon the failure to appropriate
such funds, this Contract shall be terminated.
PART 3- CONTRACTOR’S REPRESENTATIONS
3.01
In order to induce the City to enter into this Construction Contract, the Contractor makes the
following representations:
(a) The Contractor has familiarized itself with the nature and the extent of the Contract
Documents, Work, the location and site of the Work and any and all local conditions and federal, state
and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations that in any manner may affect cost, progress or
performance of the Work.
(b) Contractor has carefully studied all physical conditions at the site and existing facilities
affecting cost, progress or performance of the Work.
(c) Contractor has given the City written notice of all conflicts, errors or discrepancies that it has
discovered in the Contract Documents and, if applicable, the written resolution(s) thereof by the City
is/are acceptable to the Contractor.
(d)
Contractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work
under this Contract. Contractor shall not contract with a subcontractor that fails to certifi to the
Contractor that the subcontractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with any illegal aliens to
perform work under this Contract. By entering into this Contract, Contractor certifies as of the date of
this Contract that has confirmed the employment eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for

employment and who will perform work under the public contract for services through participation in the
e-verify program or department program. The Contractor is prohibited from using either the E-verify
program or the department program procedures to undertake pre-employment screening ofjob applicants
while this Contract is being performed. If the Contractor obtains actual knowledge that a subcontractor
performing work under this Contract knowingly employs or contracts with an illegal alien, the Contractor
shall be required to notify the subcontractor and the City within three (3) days that the Contractor has
actual knowledge that a subcontractor is employing or contracting with an illegal alien. The Contractor
shall terminate the subcontract if the subcontractor does not stop employing or contracting with the illegal
alien within three (3) days of receiving the notice regarding Contractor’s actual knowledge.
The
Contractor shall not terminate the subcontract if during such three (3) days, the subcontractor provides
information to establish that the subcontractor has not knowingly employed or contracted with an illegal
alien. The Contractor is required to comply with any reasonable request made by the Department of
Labor and Employment made in the course of an investigation undertaken to determine compliance with
this provision and applicable state law. If the Contractor violates this provision, the City may terminate
this Contract, and the Contractor may be liable for actual and/or consequential damages incurred by the
City, notwithstanding any limitation on such damages otherwise provided by this Contract.
3.02
Contractor agrees to remedy all defects appearing in the Work or developing in the materials
furnished and the workmanship performed under this Construction Contract for a period of one (1) year or
such other time that is specified in the Contract Documents after the date of acceptance of the Work by
the City, and further agrees to indemnify and save the City harmless from any costs encountered in
remedying such defects. Contractor shall provide a performance, payment, maintenance and warranty
bond that shall remain in effect until all defects are corrected as required by this paragraph.
3.03
Contractor is an independent contractor and nothing herein contained shall constitute or designate
the Contractor or any of its employees or agents as agents or employees of the City. The following
disclosure is provided in accordance with Colorado law:
CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGES THAT NEITHER IT NOR ITS AGENTS OR EMPLOYEES
ARE ENTITLED TO UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE BENEFITS UNLESS CONTRACTOR
OR SOME ENTITY OTHER THAN THE CITY PROVIDES SUCH BENEFITS. CONTRACTOR
FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT NEITHER IT NOR ITS AGENTS OR EMPLOYEES ARE
ENTITLED TO WORKERS’ COMPENSATION BENEFITS.
CONTRACTOR ALSO
ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT IS OBLIGATED TO PAY FEDERAL AND STATE INCOME TAX
ON ANY MONEYS EARNED OR PAID PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT.

PART 4- CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

4.01 The Contract Documents, which comprise the entire Construction Contract between the City and the
Contractor, are attached to this Construction Contract and made a part hereof, including:
Invitation for Bids
Instructions to Bidders
Bid Bond
Bid Form
Notice of Award
Notice to Proceed
Construction Contract
Construction Drawings
Specifications

Other:

Performance, Payment, Maintenance and Warranty Bond
General Conditions, including table of contents
Special Conditions
Addendum
Change Orders
Insurance Certificates
Tax-Exempt Certificates
In the event of an inconsistency between any provisions of the Contract Documents, the more specific
provisions shall govern the less specific provisions, and written addenda, change orders, or other
modifications approved in writing by both Parties subsequent to the date of this Contract as set forth on
page 1 hereof shall govern the original Contract Documents.
4.02
There are no Contract Documents other than those listed above. The Contract Documents may
only be altered, amended or repealed by a modification, in writing, executed by the City and the
Contractor.
PART 5- PROJECT MANAGER

5.01
The Project Manager, for the purposes of the Contract Documents, is the following, or such other
person or firm as the City may designate in writing:
Name:
Address:
Telephone:
Email:

Jeff Roberts
2450 East Quincy Avenue, Cherry Hills Village, Colorado 80113
303-783-2733
jrobertscherryhillsvillage.com

The Project Manager is authorized to represent and act as agent for the City with respect to City’s rights
and duties under the Contract Documents, provided, however, the Project Manager shall not have any
authority to approve any Change Order or approve any amendment to the Construction Contract or
Contract Documents, except for those minor Change Orders defined in paragraph 7.4.1 of the General
Conditions, such authority being specifically reserved to the duly authorized official of the City having
such approval authority pursuant to the City’s Charter and ordinances. In the event of doubt as to such
authority, the Contractor may request a written representation from the City Manager resolving such
doubt and designating the person with authority under the circumstances, which written representation
shall be conclusive and binding upon the City.
PART 6- ASSIGNMENT

6.01
No assignment by a party hereto of any rights under or interest in the Contract Documents will be
binding on another party hereto without the written consent of the party sought to be bound; and
specifically, but without limitation, moneys that may become due and moneys that are due may not be
assigned without such consent (except to the extent that the effect of this restriction may be limited by
law), and unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no assignment
will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under the Contract Documents. This
restriction on assignment includes, without limitation, assignment of the Contractors right to payment to
its surety or lender.
6.02
It is agreed that this Construction Contract shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the
parties hereto, their heirs, executors, administrators, assigns and successors.

PART 7- GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE

7.01
This Construction Contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of Colorado and the Charter
and ordinances of the City of Cherry Hills Village.
7.02
This Construction Contract shall be deemed entered into in Arapahoe County, State of Colorado,
as the City is located in said county. The location for settlement of any and all claims, controversies and
disputes arising out of or related to this Construction Contract or any breach thereof whether by
alternative dispute resolution or litigation, shall be proper only in Arapahoe County.

PART 8- LIQUIDATED DAMAGES
8.01
The City and the Contractor recognize that time is of the essence in this Construction Contract
and that the City will suffer financial loss if the Work is not substantially completed within the time
specified in paragraph 1.02 above, plus any extensions thereof allowed by the City by written Change
Order. They also recognize the delays, expense, and difficulties involved in proving, in a legal or
arbitration proceeding, the actual loss suffered by the City if the Work is not substantially complete on
time. Accordingly, rather than requiring any such proof, the City and the Contractor agree that as
liquidated damages for delay (but not as a penalty) the Contractor shall pay the City the applicable
amount set forth in the General Conditions for each day that expires after the time specified in paragraph
1.02 until the Work is complete. It is agreed that this is a reasonable estimate of the damages likely to be
suffered by the City for late completion of the Work. If the Contractor shall fail to pay such liquidated
damages promptly upon demand therefor, the Surety on the Performance, Payment, Maintenance and
Warranty Bond shall pay such damages. In addition, and at the City’s option, the City may withhold all
or any part of such liquidated damages from any payment due the Contractor.
PART 9- MODH?ICATIONS

This Construction Contract shall be modified only by written Change Orders or Addenda agreed upon by
the Parties hereto, duly issued in form approved by the City Attorney and in conformance with the other
Contract Documents.
PART 10- CONTINGENCY

This Construction Contract is expressly contingent upon the approval of the City of all of the terms set
forth herein. In the event this Construction Contract is not approved in its entirety by the City, neither
Party shall be bound to the terms of this Construction Contract.
The person or persons signing and executing this Construction Contract on behalf of each Party, do hereby
warrant and guarantee that he/she or they have been fully authorized to execute this Construction Contract
and to validly and legally bind such Party to all the terms, performances and provisions herein set forth.
No officer or employee or agent of the City shall be personally responsible for any liability arising under
or growing out of the Contract.
INSURANCE CERTIFICATES REQUIRED BY THE GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THIS
CONTRACT SHALL BE SENT TO THE PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT, CITY OF CHERRY
HILLS VILLAGE, ATTENTION: JEFF ROBERTS, PROJECT MANAGER

_________)

________________________
________________________________
____________________________
___________________________________

_____________________
__________
_____________________

_____

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Construction Contract in triplicate. Two
counterparts have been delivered to the City and one counterpart has been delivered to the Contractor.
All portions of the Contract Documents have been signed or identified by the City and the Contractor.
CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE,
COLORADO

By:
Mayor Russell 0. Stewart

ATTEST:

APPROVED AS TO FORM (excluding exhibits):

City Clerk

City Attorney, Kathie Guckenberger

CONTRACTOR: Singing Hills Landscape Inc.
By:
Name:
Title:

STATE

)

OF

) ss.
COUNTY

OF

The foregoing Construction Contract was acknowledged before me this
20, by
as
corporation.

day of___________________
of Singing Hill, Inc. a Colorado

Withess my hand and official seal.
My

commission

expires:

Notary Public
(Required for all contracts pursuant to C.R.S.
§ 8-40-202(2)(b)(IV))

__________

EXHIBIT B

III.

FORM OF BID

Bidder:

Sivj

+rl

Lc.p-

City of Cherry Hills Village Project No. 2019-604
This Bid is dated
To:

,

2011.

The City of Cherry Hills Village, State of Colorado.

BASE BID
Estimated
Quantity

Item #

Description

I

Backflow Equipment and Installation

2

Irrigation Equipment and Materials (including pipe)

Unit Cost

Unit

Cost Extended

4r I’

1.5

I

‘

C,5°

6

OO

3

Installation of Irrigation System

LS

VI ,

4

Pavement Restoration

L5

4

5

Landscape Restoration

I_S

l

6

GeneralConditions

51 5c
L
Sb

#

I”

Cf g200

Total Base Bid

$

I4

ot

Add! Alternate
Item #

Description

7
8
9

Removalofsodandgrading
Installation of sod
KWCO B 1 10 Hose Reel Unit with
Bellows Drive, SIME K! Sprinkler and
15 ft. Connection Hose

Estimated
Quantity

Unit

28,000sg.ft.
28,000 sq. ft.

sg.fi.
sq. ft.

(

Total Add Alternates

Unit Cost

I..

t-

‘

$

*Number of days to complete items 7 and 8

Cost Extended

$

‘ôoc

Days
ci(

prL

ci L& Ly/iooo p
*If the City chooses to accept the Add!Alternate 7 and 8 additional contract time will be added to the contract.
The project is a turnkey, lump sum bid. All materials, labor, equipment and incidentals needed to complete the
project as outlined in the construction documents
to be included.

are

All Traffic Control and Traffic Control Costs are the responsibility of the Contractor.
A port-a-pot / toilet must be onsite prior to any start of work and will be included in General Conditions.
All locate costs including private locates shall be included in General Conditions.
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CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE
COLORADO
2450 E. Quincy Avenue
Cherry Hills Village, CO 80113
www.cherryhillsvillage.com

Village Center
Telephone 303-789-2541
FAX 303-761-9386
ITEM: 10a

MEMORANDUM

TO:

HONORABLE MAYOR STEWART AND MEMBERS OF CITY COUNCIL

FROM:

JESSICA SAGER, DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION

SUBJECT: CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE ART COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION FOR
SCULPTURE-ON-LOAN AND PERMANENT ART FOR CITY HALL
DATE:

MAY 21, 2019

ISSUES
(i) Should City Council authorize the Cherry Hills Village Public Art Commission (CHVAC)
to expend up to $10,000 for the delivery, installation, two-year loan, and removal of Really
by Wayne Salge which will be placed behind City Hall along Quincy Avenue.
(ii) Should City Council authorize the Commission to expend 1% of the construction budget
for the new City Hall, or $45,000, for the purchase of art for City Hall.
DISCUSSION
Background
Since its inception in 2011 the Commission has solicited loans of sculpture from artists for display
in the City. Loan periods are typically for at least two years. In the past the Commission has
utilized Call for Entry and Application Management or CaFE several times towards this end. The
following sculptures are or were part of the Commission’s loan program:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Sundown by Walt Horton, located at the Village Center, on loan 2011-2017
Bein Withond by Anthony Heinz May, located at Three Pond Park, on loan since 2012
Flying Cranes by Reven Swanson, formerly located at Quincy and Happy Canyon, on loan
2013-2015
Colorado Loop #6 by Yoshitomo Saito, formerly located at Quincy and University, on loan
2014-2017
Rubric by Emmett Culligan, located at the Village Center, was commissioned for loan in
2014 and purchased by the City in 2016
Big Bronze Walking Eye Flower by James Surls, located in City Park on the northwest
corner of Quincy and University, on loan 2018-2020

2019 Sculpture-on-Loan
Beginning in 2017 the CHVAC has been working with an art consultant, Kendall Peterson of
ThereSquared Inc., to develop the sculpture-on-loan program. After several discussions about
1
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different artists and pieces, the CHVAC chose Really by Wayne Salge for a two-year loan (see
Exhibit A for artist information). Wayne Salge is a local Colorado artist and his pieces have been
placed in various cities throughout Colorado. The Cherry Hills Village Art Commission is very
excited about the opportunity to work with Mr. Salge.
Public Outreach
An article about the possible loan was published in the April issue of the Village Crier (Exhibit B).
The Parks, Trails and Recreation Commission discussed the issue at their April 11, 2019 meeting
and voted unanimously to recommend approval (see Exhibit C for draft minutes).
Proposed Location
In 2016 the CHVAC consulted with a group of residents on preferred locations for art on loan. The
residents identified locations along the Quincy Avenue corridor as the best locations for public art.
The proposed location for Really is on the City Hall campus in the same place that Sundown
previously occupied (Exhibit D).
Installation Information
Ms. Peterson is coordinating with the artist and the Public Works department to install the
sculpture. The specific location was chosen in coordination between the artist, Ms. Peterson, and
City staff. The artist will provide a template so that City staff can locate utility lines, dig holes for
the footers and pour concrete prior to delivery of the sculpture. An engineer letter will be required
prior to installation to substantiate the necessary footers. A crane may be necessary to move the
sculpture from a trailer to the final location.
A finalized installation and removal plan will be included as Exhibit B to the Art Loan Agreement
(Exhibit E) once more details are coordinated between Ms. Peterson and the artist.
New Art for City Hall
City Council discussed the possibility of approving a permanent sculpture or various art pieces for
City Hall at the September 4, 2018 Council meeting. During the meeting Council indicated their
general support of a permanent sculpture, but because City Hall was still under construction,
wanted to wait until construction was complete before authorizing the expenditure of funds for the
new piece (Exhibit F). Now that City Hall is complete and the costs came in under budget, the
CHVAC is requesting funding of 1% of the building costs or approximately $45,000. The 1% cost
is similar to what other jurisdictions use to fund art programs. If the funding is approved, the
CHVAC has plans to create a committee that will review permanent art pieces or sculptures and
return to City Council with potential options and/or recommendations.
BUDGET IMPACT
The total cost for the sculpture on loan is not expected to exceed $12,100 over the course of the
two-year period, including the $10,000 fee paid to the artist. This includes the cost of the engineer
letter, crane to place and remove the sculpture, miscellaneous materials required to install the
sculpture, insurance and plaque. The anticipated expenditures will be paid from the Cherry Hills
Village Art Commission line item located in the Parks and Recreation Fund. The approved 2019
budget for the Commission was $21,000 and there is $19,139 remaining in that account.
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If City Council approves the Commission to purchase permanent art pieces for the new City Hall,
the expense will be paid out of the City Hall construction line item from the COP Fund.
RECOMMENDED MOTIONS
“I move to approve the expenditure of up to $12,100 for the delivery, installation, two-year loan,
and removal of Really by Wayne Salge to be installed on the City Hall campus along Quincy
Avenue, and authorize the Mayor to sign the Art Loan Agreement once it has been signed by the
artist.”
“I move to approve the Cherry Hills Village Art Commission to expend up to $45,000 for the
purchase of art for the new City Hall.”
ATTACHMENTS
Exhibit A:
Wayne Salge Biography
Exhibit B:
Really Article for April 2019 Village Crier
Exhibit C:
Draft April 11, 2019 Parks, Trails and Recreation Commission Minutes
Exhibit D:
Map of Proposed Location
Exhibit E:
Art Loan Agreement
Exhibit F:
September 4, 2018 City Council Minutes
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EXHIBIT A

REsuME

WAYNE SALE
THE NATIoNAL SCULPTORS’ GUILD

BIOGRAPHY:
2000-present
1970-2000
1968-70
1967-68
1941-1967
November 10, 1940

current home and studio
Denver, CO
Washington, DC
Viet Nam
San Antonio, TX
Born

-

-

-

Johnstown, CO

San Antonio, TX

EDUCATION:
San Antonio College
La Villita School of Art
Bronze foundry workshop
Stone sculpture workshop
PUBLIC ART PLACEMENTS
2018
“Gibson” Benson Sculpture Garden
2017
‘Sierra” Residential Entryway
2016
“You” Children’s Hospital,
2015
“Whoo”
2015
“Whoo”
2013
“Cecil” Riverfront Park
2012
“Sierra” Downtown
2010
“Crab Louis” Downtown
2009
“Sizzling Sisters” \‘ogel Schwartz Sculpture Garden
2005
“Antonio” Old Town
2003
“Spirit of Reconciliation”, The Conflict Center
2002
“Cimarron”, Benson Park
2001
“Antonio”
-

-

San Antonio, TX
San Antonio, TX
Denver, CO
Golden, CO

Loveland, CO
Edmond, OK
Aurora, CO
Tampa Bay, FL
Little Rock, AR
Little Rock, AR
Little Rock, AR
Whittier, CA
Little Rock, AR
Steamboat Springs, CO
Denver, CO
Loveland, CO
Summerville, SC

CORPORATE COLLECTIONS.
Steele Street Bank & Trust
Omni Interlocken Resort
Four Seasons Hotel
The Ritz-Canton Bachelor Gulch
—

PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIP.
National Sculpture Society, Elected
National Sculptors’ Guild, Fellow
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE:
Television art director
Army illustrator
Advertising agency art director
Freelance graphic designer and illustrator
Artist, stone, bronze, oils and acrylics
WAYNE SALcE

I

THE NATIoNAL SCULPToRs’ GUILD

2683 North Taft Avenue I Loveland, Colorado 80538 1(970) 667-2015
\Vayne@NationalSculptorscuild.com I NationalSculptorscuild corn

-

Denver,
Broomfield,
Denver,
Beaver Creek,

CO
CO
CO
CO

New York, NY
Loveland, CO

PRINT.

Feature Article “The Equine Image” April/May 1999 Issue
Profile “SouthwestArt” luly 1999 Issue
Article “InlormArt” Summer 2000 Issue
Feature Article “SouthwestArt” April 2002 Issue
Article “Wildlife Art” March/April 2003 Issue
Feature Article “Loveland Reporter-Herald” November, 2005
Article “Savannah Morning News” May 14, 2009
Article “Loveland Reporter-Herald” August 5, 2009
Article “The Johnstown Breeze” “Our Towns” September 2009
Book “Sculpture of the Rockies” 2009
Profile “Southwest Art” July 2010
Article “Colorado Homes and Lifestyles” lune/luly 2010
Article “Loveland Reporter Herald” August 2010
Article “Denver Magazine” Four Seasons Hotel Collection August 2010
Article “Southwest Art” November 2012
Profile “Sculpture News” National Sculpture Society luly/August 2013
Article “Arkansas Democrat-Gazette” April 2014
Article “Fine Art Connoisseur” August 2014
Feature Article “Southwest Art” July 2015
Artists of Note “Southwest Art” December 2015
Article, “Loveland Reporter Herald” July 2018
Article “Longmont Times Call” luly 2018
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

—

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

SELECT EXHIBITIONS:
2010-18
2009-18
2009-18
2015-18
2018
2015

2009-IS

2009
2009

National Sculptors’ Guild Annual Exhibit
Loveland, CO
Sculpture at the River Market
Little Rock, AR
Sculpture in the Park
Loveland, CO
Colorado Governor’s Invitational Art Show
Loveland, CO
Art on the Llano Estacado, TTU Museum
Lubbock, TX
Mt Pisgah Cemetery Sculpture Program
Gillette, WY
Straz Center for the Performing Arts
Tampa, FL
“All Creatures Great & Small”, Naples Botanical Garden
Naples, FL
Southeastern Wildlife Exposition
Charleston, SC
Small Works Great Wonders, National Cowboy & \Vestern Heritage Museum OKC, OK
Sculpture Walk
Sioux Falls, SD
Sculpture in the High Desert
Bend, OR
Sculpture in the Hills
Hill City, SD
New Bern Sculpture Show
New Bern, NC
Sculpture in the South
Summerville, SC
National Sculpture Society Exhibit, Brookgreen Gardens
Pawleys Island, SC
American Art Invitational, Saks Galleries
Denver, CO
North American Sculpture Exhibition at Foothills Art Center
Golden, CO
Two-Person Show at MacLaren Markowitz Gallery
Boulder, CO
by of Sculpture, Colorado History Museum
Denver, CO
Sedona Sculpture Walk
Sedona, AZ
Two-Person Show at the Depot
Steamboat Springs, CO
The Albuquerque Museum Miniatures Show
Albuquerque, NM
Two-Person Show at Phoenix Gallery
Park City, UT
La Ouinta Arts Festival
La Quinta, CA
Featured Artist at Turning Point Gallery
Chapel Hill, NC
Featured Artist at Saks Galleries
Denver, CO
WAYNE SALGE

I

THE NATIoNAL SCULPTORS’ GUILD

2683 North Talt Avenue I Loveland, Colorado 80538 I (970) 667-2015
Wayne@NationalSculptorsGuild.com I NationalSculptorsGuild corn

EXHIBIT B
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SAVE THE

DATE

000

One-Day Classes
Native Plants at Cherokee Ranch
May i7 from 830-12:3Qpm

2101 W Quincy Avenue, Sheridan, Co
(the new Public Works location in Sheridan>
Please note the following schedule:
Thursday, Friday and Saturday
(May 16th, 17th and 18th)
Dumpsters will be available all three days
from 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. (SHREDDING, PAINT

April 13

as County Fairgrounds
June 22

Nature Journaling & Native Plants*
July

Native Plant Master Courses

—

Thursdays, May 16,

Saturday, May 18th only from 9:00 a.m.
to 2:00 p.m. Community Shred Event

Sandstone Ranch
and

9- ,)m

Roxborough State Park
Tuesdays, June t t1

-

Plains Conservation Center’
Thursdays, September 5, 12, and 19- Iron
For more information and a lull class listing:

Douglas.Extensio

.

Cob

state.edulfoothllls-to
plains.npnil

please visit:
FoothIlisToPIaInsNPM.Eventbrlte.com
To register

Re,t

1 Hod

God..,so,,R,e.H, I,,

COLORADO STATE UNIVERStTY
EXTENSION

csuea,.,,e,,p,o,,,..
.,.

•1 CH

q8ol

G.,do.oa

For queslons, contact Lucinda Greene at
LGreeneArapahoeGov.com
oyLG,
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CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE ART COMMISSIONS

SELECTS NEW SCULPTURE ON LOAN
ince its inception in 2011, the Cherry Hills Village Art Commission (CHVAC) has solicited
loans of sculpture from artists for display in the City. “The Cherry Hills Village Art
Commission would like to provide more access to great art in our community,” states Ann
Polumbus, CHVAC Chair, “loan programs can help us do that with very little risk.” Loan periods
typically last at least two years and provide Villagers and those visiting our community with an
opportunity to experience and interact with a variety of artists, styles, and mediums, all on a rotating
basis. The City normally pays the artist a stipend for the loan of the artwork.
The CHVAC is recommending that the City enter into an agreement for the two-year loan of
Really (2017) by Colorado sculptor Wayne Salge (salgescuipture .com). “Wayne is a very wellrespected artist who lives and works in Colorado. His piece Really leaves one wondering what his
character is actually thinking” stated Polumbus. Depending on where he is located, he may be
wondering about the students at CHV Elementary, or Big Bronze Walking Eye Flower or the
drivers on University. The CHVAC believes that the southeast corner of Quincy Avenue and
University Boulevard may be an ideal location for this sculpture during its loan period.
The CHVAC will present their recommendation to the Parks, Trails and Recreation Commission
and to the City Council for approval at upcoming meetings.

S

am

Designing Your Landscape: Native Plants & Pollinators*

Saturday, May 18th only from 8:00 a.m.
to 4:00 p.m. Paint and Electronics

If you have any questions regarding this event,
please visit the City’s website at
www.cherryhillsvillage.com or call (303) 783—2744

Cherokee Ranch

Introduction to Native Plants*

AND ELECTRONIC RECYCLING WILL ONLY BE
ACCEPTED DURING THE TIME LISTED BELOW)

This program is for residents only and City staff will be checking
ID’s. Please be prepared to show your driver’s license with a
Cherry Hills Village address. City Staff will be available to help
unload acceptable items on May 18th. Appliances, televisions
(up to 19 inches only) will be accepted; unfortunately, larger
items will not be accepted as the cost is too substantial for the
City to accept.

—

Introduction to Botany and Plant Families

.A,
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EXHIBIT C

Excerpt from the Draft Minutes of the
Parks, Trails & Recreation Commission of the
City of City of Cherry Hills Village, Colorado
Held on Thursday, April 11, 2019 at 5:30 p.m.
at the Village Center

PARKS, TRAILS AND RECREATION COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING
Chair Robert Eber called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.
ROLL CALL

Chair Robert Eber, Commissioners Joshua DiCarlo, Fred Wolfe, Aron Grodinsky,
Stephanie Dahi were present. Also present were Emily Black, Parks and Recreation
Coordinator and Pamela Broyles, Administrative Assistant.
Absent: Commissioner Kate Murphy, Commissioner Peter Sutherland

*********************************************************************

NEW BUSINESS
a. CHV Sculpture-on-Loan Really by Wayne Salge

Parks and Recreation Coordinator Emily Black announced that the Cherry Hills Village
Art Commission is recommending to the PTRC that the City approve a two-year loan of
the sculpture Really by Wayne Salge. The plan is to install the sculpture near the
southeast corner of Quincy and University or in front of City Hall facing the Cherry Hills
Village Elementary School. The Art Commission is working with the artist and Public
Works Director Jay Goldie to find a place for the sculpture. The planned construction in
John Meade Park restricts where the sculpture can be placed. PTRC is being asked to
make a recommendation on whether the sculpture is an appropriate piece of art that
would add to the City Hall and John Meade Park area.
Mr. Dave Schniidt with the Cherry Hills Art Commission was present to answer any
questions. He affirmed that the Art Commission is very excited about the piece. He
described the piece as being a 9-foot-tall bronze sculpture with a contemporary modern
feel.
Commissioner Grodinsky asked about the cost of the project including installation.
Mr. Schmidt responded that the funds will come out of the Art Commission’s budget.
The Art Commission will work with City staff on the installation. Mr. Schmidt noted
Parks & Trails Commission
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that the previous artist proclaimed that the City’s Public Works Department was the best
crew he had ever worked with on installation.
Mr. Eber commented that he is honored that the Art Commission has come before PTRC
in the past for art pieces. He voiced concern that the Parks Commission is not qualified
to judge art and yet they are being asked to make a recommendation to City Council on
whether a piece should go in a park. He questioned whether PTRC is being asked to
approve the art or the location.
Ms. Black responded that the original location for this sculpture was in John Meade Park,
which would be in PTRC’s purview. Due to construction the decision was made to move
the piece closer to City Hall. She explained that PTRC would generally not be asked to
approve artwork that is not in a park.
Vice-Chair Wolfe voiced that in his opinion the art piece is subjective. He said he is not
comfortable with seeing contemporary pieces of art in the Village. He believes art should
be tied to the City’s rural nature.
Ms. Black maintained that the Art Commission has made great efforts to balance
competing desires for representative versus abstract art. She added that the Art
Commission did a good job in picking this piece that that will be appreciated by the
community and elementary school students.
Chair Eber asked how the Cherry Hills Village Art Commission and PTRC could
communicate better on future projects. He suggested a study session that would allow
PTRC to get involved earlier in the process. His intent is to prevent PTRC from being
placed in a position to inhibit the Art Commission from moving forward on a piece of art.
Commissioner Dahl commented that PTRC first needs to determine whether they are
being asked to approve the art piece or the location so there can be appropriate discussion
rather than multiple discussions that are irrelevant.
Ms. Black further explained that the process is case-by-case and will not necessarily
follow a set path, since the exact location is not always chosen when the piece comes to
PTRC. She advised that PTRC will make a recommendation, but ultimately the decision
is made by City Council taking into account the recommendations from PTRC, the Art
Commission, and public input. Ms. Black reiterated that in this case PTRC is being
asked to approve the sculpture and not the location. The proposal will go to City Council
with a specific location.
Commissioner DiCarlo commented that he is concerned that adding more art around the
City Center could start to look clustered. He would like to see art pieces spread out.
The Commission discussed the progress of a permanent piece of art that will be
purchased and installed in front of City Hall.

Parks & Trails Commission
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Ms. Black noted that there was a brief discussion about installing the Really sculpture in
front of City Hall until a permanent piece is decided on and purchased.
Vice-Chair Wolfe said he believes the Really sculpture would look best in front of City
Hall since the piece depicts someone who is thinking or contemplating.
Chair Eber commented that he liked the idea of the sculpture facing the elementary
school from an educational standpoint more than facing University Boulevard.
Commissioner Grodinsky suggested that the sculpture would be viewed and enjoyed by
the community and students if it were placed in the City’s right-of-way in front of the
school on Quincy Avenue.
The Parks Commission agreed that they like the sculpture and there were no objections to
installing the piece near City Hall.
Commissioner Stephanie Dahl moved, seconded by Commissioner Aron Grodinsky to
recommend that City Council approve a two-year loan of Really by Wayne Salge to be
installed at an appropriate location to be determined by the Art Commission, Public
Works and all necessary parties.
The motion passed unanimously.

Parks & Trails Commission
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EXHIBIT D
‘

\

location
•
of proposed City Hall
Artwork

EXHIBIT E

CHA C
CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE ART COMMISSION
303-789-2541

2450 E. Quincy Avenue
Cherry Hills Village, CO 80113

INCOMING LOAN AGREEMENT
Lender’s Name: Wayne Salge
Mailing Address: 2683 North Taft Avenue

City/State/Zip: Loveland, CO 80538

Home Phone: (970) 667-2015

\Iternate Phone:

Email Address: wayne@nationalsculptorsguild.com Loan Period: From July 2019 To July 2021
loan period commences upon delivery and installation.
Complete cost of loan, including all art materials, artist time, installation, loan period, removal, and artist
honorarium: Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000)
ITLE OF ART PIECE

Really

MEDIA

culpture

SIZE

INSURANCE
VALUE*

8’hx23”wxll”d

$200,000

FOR SALE** SOLD
dmin.
(YES/NO)
use only
(es

Special Conditions:
*

Insurance value = retail value. In the event of an insurance claim Lender receives retail value minus commission fee.
**Lender agrees that sale of the Art as defined herein during the loan period shall be subject to applicable City and state
sales tax and 5% commission on the sale price payable to the City in consideration of Lender’s use of City property.
I hereby acknowledge that I am the owner or agent and I am fully authorized to lend the object(s) described above and
hQse on attached listings (if any), all in good condition, except where noted, to Cherry Hills Village Art Commission. I
acknowledge that the Art Commission is a volunteer committee of the City of Cherry Hills Village and not a separate legal
entity, and that the City of Cherry Hills Village is the party in interest wherever reference is made herein to the Art
Commission. I hereby certify that I have read and agree to abide by the conditions, printed on the reverse side of this
aqreement, qoverninq this loan.
Lender’s Signature:
Date:
-

City Representative:

Date:

Loan Release:

Return of the above loan object(s) in satisfactory condition is hereby acknowledged. I hereby release the City of Cherry Hill
Iillage, its agents, officials and employees, the Art Commission and its individual members from all claims of damage to thi
(these) object(s).
Lender’s Signature:
City

Representative:

llDate
iate:

Terms and Conditions Governing Loans of Public Art
to the City of Cherry Hills Village through the Art Commission (CHVAC)
Ownership, Care, Conservation, Installation and Exhibition:
1. The City of Cherry Hills Village, through its CHVAC will give the borrowed work(s) of art (‘Art”) the same care as it does
omparable property of its own. A condition report will be recorded upon delivery of the loaned item. Evidence of damage,
regardless of cause, while in custody of CHVAC will be reported as soon as reasonably possible to the Lender.
2. All art, however, is subject to gradual deterioration (inherent vice), and CHVAC will not be held liable for degradation of the Art
caused by such deterioration.
3. No alteration, restoration or repair will be undertaken by the City without the written authorization of the Lender.
Lender will submit an Installation and Removal plan as part of this Loan Agreement. It is expected that the Lender (or Lender’s
representative) will oversee and give final approval on the installation and removal of loaned items. Engineering approval may
also be required.
5. Lender warrants it has right, title and ownership interest in the Art and that the Art is not subject to any ownership, lien
encumbrance, copyright, infringement or other claim by any other person or entity.
Insurance:
6. Art will be insured during the Loan Period by the City of Cherry Hills Village in the amount specified by the established
insurance value, as listed in this Agreement. The City and/or its insurer will not be responsible for a loss greater than the
assigned amount shown in this Agreement. If the loan consists of two or more works of art and a value is not included for each,
he City and/or its insurer will not be responsible for a loss in an amount greater than the Art’s proportional amount to the set.
7. If the Lender elects to maintain his or her own insurance coverage, CHVAC must be supplied with a certificate of insurance
naming the City as an additional insured party.
8. The City will not be responsible for any error or deficiency in information furnished to the Lender’s insurer or any lapses in
overage.
9. All transportation and delivery costs of the Art between the Lender’s address noted on the reverse side and the City
fesignated location shall be paid by Wayne Salge.
10. Insurance Coverage during transport of the Art shall be the responsibility of Wayne Salge.
11. Nothing contained herein is intended to waive, limit or otherwise affect the coverages and protections afforded the City under
he Colorado Governmental Immunity Act.
Credit:
12. CHVAC may photograph objects on loan for publicity, marketing, educational materials and exhibition catalogs and will credit
he Lender in such publicity unless otherwise specified in this Agreement.
13. Copyright remains with the artist during the term of the loan.
Return of Loans:
14. Unless otherwise agreed upon by both parties, a loan terminates on the date specified on the face of this Agreement, which
shall not be less than one year. If no termination date is specified, sixty days written notice must be given to the CHVAC to
remove the Art. Upon expiration of the loan, the loaned art will be released to the Lender, or his or her duly authorized agent, or
legal representative, according to written instructions of the Lender, provided that the CHVAC and City shall not incur any costs
or expenses associated with release, delivery and return of the Art without CHVAC’s prior written approval.
15. If the Lender has not removed loaned Art within one hundred twenty days after receiving written notice of termination from
he CHVAC, or has not taken possession of the loaned Art within one hundred twenty days after receiving written notice that the
\rt is being released pursuant to Paragraph 14 above, the loaned Art shall be deemed an unrestricted gift to the CHVAC in
accordance with the laws of the State of Colorado covering the Loans of Property to Museums.
16. The Lender is responsible for providing written notice to the CHVAC immediately of a change in his or her return address,
elephone number or email.
17. In the case of change of legal ownership, the new owner is required to provide written notification to the CHVAC immediately
and establish his/her legal ownership by proof satisfactory to the CHVAC.
Notice:
18. Any notice required under this Agreement shall be in writing, addressed to the party at the address specified herein, and sent
ña certified U. S. Mail, return receipt requested.
.

19. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed under the laws of the State of Colorado, and venue for any litigation
shall be Arapahoe County.

achrnents:

EXHIBIT F
RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS

Minutes of the
City Council of the City of Cherry Hills Village, Colorado
Held on Tuesday, September 4, 2018 at 6:30 p.m.
At the Joint Public Safety Facility
The City Council held a study session at 5:36 p.m.
Mayor Laura Christman called the meeting to order at 6:37 p.m.

ROLL CALL
Mayor Laura Christman, Councilors Randy Weil, Al Blum, Mike Gallagher, and Katy
Brown were present on roll call. Also present were City Manager Jim Thorsen, City
Attorney Linda Michow, Police Chief Michelle Tovrea, Finance Director Jessica Sager
and City Clerk Laura Gillespie.
Absent: Mayor Pro Tern Hoellen and Councilor Dan Sheldon
Mayor Christman noted that Mayor Pro Tern Hoellen was absent in order to deal with an
elderly parent and asked everyone’s forgiveness for his absence.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Council conducted the pledge of allegiance.

CANDIDATE LOT DRAW
City Clerk Gillespie explained that the City had three contested positions for the
November 6, 2018 election Mayor, District 2, and District 6— and per state statute a
lot draw was used to determine the order of names on the ballot. Mike Gallagher would
run unopposed for District 4.
—

City Clerk Gillespie and City Attorney Michow conducted the Candidate Lot Draw
resulting in the following order of names: for Mayor, Russell Stewart was drawn first and
Laura Christman was drawn second; for District 2, Afshin Safavi was drawn first and
Earl Hoellen was drawn second; for District 6, Zachary Bishop was drawn first and Katy
Brown was drawn second.

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION PERIOD
Ron Yaros, 19 Cherry Hills Farm Drive, explained that traffic on Belleview was very
heavy and often backed up, making it very difficult to exit the Cherry Hills Farm
neighborhood. He asked if the City could help to get CDOT to paint do not cross” on
Belleview at the entrance to the neighborhood. He also asked the City about the status
of a guard house for the entrance to the neighborhood so that the guard would not have
to leave the neighborhood to use the bathroom. He noted that a recent bout of car thefts
had occurred while the guard was off-site using the bathroom. He added that he was
not representing the association or neighborhood and was asking as a homeowner and
resident.

CONSENT AGENDA
Councilor Brown moved, seconded by Councilor Blum to approve the following items on
the Consent Agenda:
a.

Approval of Minutes

September 4, 2018
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The motion passed unanimously.
ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA

None
UNFINISHED BUSINESS
Permanent Sculpture for New City Hall
Director Sager explained that at the June 19, 2018 study session Council had discussed
a possible permanent sculpture for the new City Hall. The Cherry Hills Village Art
Commission (CHVAC) had subsequently discussed the Councils questions and
concerns at their next two meetings. She introduced the CHVACs consultant Kendall
Peterson.
Ms. Peterson explained that public art provided civic pride and a sense of place for civic
buildings. She indicated that the CHVAC’s recommendation was for Council to budget
1% of the construction costs of the new City Hall for public art, or $40,000. She noted
that 1% was a common amount for public art around the country and this would be a
one-time budget item for the City.

Councilor Blum asked how much the seated figures sculpture in Ms. Peterson’s
presentation cost.
Ms. Peterson replied that all four figures cost about $25,000. She noted that the artist
created seated figures in marble as shown on the presentation, and in stone which was
more affordable. She explained that another of the CHVAC’s recommendations was to
form an Art Selection Panel specific to this project, consisting of Council members,
CHVAC members, and residents, for a total of seven to nine people. She added that the
CHVAC recommended keeping Charlo at its current location. She indicated that the Art
Selection Panel would determine the criteria on which to select art, evaluate possible
locations, form the selection process and determine the timing of art installation in
relation to completion of the building. She presented examples of abstract and
representational art from local artists to Council.
Councilor Well asked if $40,000 would be for one installation or multiple installations.
Ms. Peterson replied that the funds could be divided between an outdoor sculpture and
artwork for indoors. She added that $40,000 was a reasonable amount for one
significant piece.
Councilor Blum asked when Council needed to decide.
City Manager Thorsen replied that staff was currently working on the 2019 budget and
would be presenting drafts to Council in September and October.
Councilor Blum noted that he would prefer to wait until the final cost of the new City Hall
was known before committing more funds.
Mayor Christman agreed.
Councilor Gallagher noted that the $40,000 would be separate from the CHVAC’s
annual budget of $20,000.
September 4, 2018
City Council
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Mayor Christman indicated that she was not comfortable budgeting $40000 right now,
but was comfortable with creating the Art Selection Panel.
City Manager Thorsen suggested that the 2019 budget could be amended next year
once the new City Hall was completed and final costs were known.
Councilor Brown noted that the CHVAC needed to know the budget before moving
forward with any selection process. She suggested waiting to form the Panel until the
budget was known.
Ms. Peterson agreed that a selection process would not be productive without a budget
and would not be fair to the artists.
Councilor Blum asked about the timing of the selection process.
Ms. Peterson replied that if the Panel chose an existing work then it could take as little
as two weeks from selection to installation, but if the Panel solicited a commissioned
piece then the process would likely take several months involving a call for entries, artist
site visits, final proposals and selection. She noted that a commissioned piece would
likely be more interesting and site specific.
Mayor Christman indicated that her preference was to finish construction of the new City
Hall first, then go through the art selection process. She noted that she believed this
would maximize the value of the art from both a budget and site perspective.
Councilor Gallagher agreed.
Councilor Brown asked if the Art Selection Panel should begin now.
Ms. Peterson replied that formation of the Panel could begin in November or December.
Mayor Christman noted that she was fine with the 1% budget but wanted to see the final
building costs first.
Councilor Brown added that Council was not saying that they wouldn’t do something
with public art for the new building but the budget was unknown at this point.
Councilor Blum added that the budget would be known at some point and Council could
move forward with the selection panel.
Ms. Peterson noted that adding electricity for future art before the site was landscaped
could help reduce costs.
City Manager Thorsen replied that electricity was planned for that area.
Councilor Brown thanked Ms. Peterson and noted that she was an amazing addition to
the CHVAC and had taken the CHVAC’s ideas and cooperation and moved them
forward.
Ms. Peterson replied that it was a great pleasure to work with the CHVAC.
Resolution 19, Series 2018; ConcerninQ the Appointment of a New Member to the
Parks, Trails and Recreation Commission
City Clerk Gillespie explained that at the April 17, 2018 Council meeting Councilors
Mike Gallagher and Katy Brown agreed to conduct interviews and make
September 4, 2018
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recommendations for appointments to the Parks, Trails and Recreation Commission
(PTRC). In June staff was notified by PTRC member Elisabeth (Liesje) Johnson of her
plans to move out of the City and her necessary resignation from the PTRC. At the June
19, 2018 Council meeting Council agreed that Councilors Mike Gallagher and Katy
Brown should make a recommendation to fill that vacancy from the pooi of existing
applicants without the need for further solicitation of applicants by staff. Councilors
Gallagher and Brown recommended appointment of Stephanie Dahi. District 5 to the
PTRC to complete Ms. Johnson’s term. Based on past Council discussions regarding
Council’s desire for staggered terms, staff suggested that instead of appointing Ms.
DahI to complete Ms. Johnson’s terni ending in 2020 that the term end in 2021, which
would further stagger temis on PTRC.
Mayor Christman asked if the staggered terms had been discussed with the PTRC
Chair.
City Clerk Gillespie replied they had not.
Councilor Brown noted that unlike the City’s other Boards and Commissions, the City
Code specifically called for representation on PTRC from each of the Districts when
possible. She noted that Ms. Dahi was a wonderful candidate and very well qualified but
it was also beneficial that she would be representing a District not currently represented
on PTRC.
Councilor Gallagher moved, seconded by CouncHor Weil to approve Resolution 19,
Series 2018; concerning the appointment of a new member to the Parks, Trails and
Recreation Commission to a term ending on the third Tuesday in May, 2021.
The motion passed unanimously.
NEW BUSINESS
Proclamation 1, Series 2018; In Honor of Senator McCain
Mayor Christman noted that two Councilors had independently contacted her about this
proclamation, one an ardent democrat and the other an ardent republican, which spoke
to Senator McCain and to the nonpartisan nature of the City.
City Clerk Gillespie explained that at the direction of Mayor Pro Tern Hoellen and
Councilor Blum, staff added to tonight’s agenda Proclamation 1, Series 2018 in honor of
Senator John McCain. Senator McCain passed away on August 25, 2018.
City Manager Thorsen thanked Mayor Pro Tern Hoellen for his work in writing the
proclamation.
Councilor Blurn agreed that it was well written and agreed on the nonpartisan nature of
the Council.
Mayor Christman asked that the proclamation be read into the record.
Councilor Blurn read the proclamation: A Proclamation of the City Council of the City of
Cherry Hills Village in honor of Senator John McCain. Whereas, John Sydney McCain
Ill served his Country with honor, courage, and integrity for over 60 years, first in the
Navy, then as a Congressman and Senator from Arizona, and also as a two-time
contender for the Presidency; and whereas, as an example of his courage and integrity,
when offered early release from captivity during the Vietnam war he honorably refused
release before those captured before him because it was a violation of the military code
September4,2018
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of conduct: and whereas, as an example of his commitment to peace and respect for
the dignity of all people, even though he was held and tortured as a prisoner in Vietnam,
as Senator he led the way to the Country’s reconciliation with Vietnam; and whereas,
even though he was a fierce partisan and infighter, he was always willing to “work
across the aisle” to achieve a result that was in the best interest of the Country as a
whole, even if it meant loss of position and power within his own Party; and whereas,
like those who try to make a difference, inevitably he would make mistakes, but unlike
most politicians was never afraid to admit them. Now, therefore, the City Council of the
City of Cherry Hills Village mourns the loss of a great public servant and honors him for
his significant contributions to the United States and his shining example of courage,
integrity, and “straight talk” that should be an inspiration to every American.

Councilor Blum moved, seconded by Councilor Weil to approve Proclamation 1, Series
2018; in honor of Senator John McCain.
The motion passed unanimously.
REPORTS
Mayor’s Report
Mayor Christman reported that she and Councilor Brown had met with several citizens
about safety and thanked the Police Department for providing information to give to
citizens. She suggested that it would be nice for the community to have the holiday
event this year, despite the construction.
City Manager Thorsen noted that funds were available in the budget for a holiday event.

Members of City Council
None.

Members of City Boards and Commissions
Councilor Weil had no report.
Councilor Gallagher had no report.
Councilor Brown had no report.
Councilor Blum reported that they were awaiting final numbers from the Glenmoor
Homeowners Association in order to move forward with the traffic light at Belleview.

City Manager Thorsen noted that staff anticipated the new traffic signal to have a
positive effect on nearby neighborhood entrances off of Belleview, such as Cherry Hills
Farm, because of the breaks in traffic it would create.
Mayor Christman noted that this project had taken ten years and thanked Councilor
Blum and City Manager Thorsen for their work.

City Manager & Staff
City Manager Thorsen reported that work on the new City Hall was progressing. He
noted that the ground would be paved later this week.
September 4, 2018
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Chief Tovrea reported that Police Clerk Paul McCarthy was back to work after fainting
and hitting his head last week. She explained that Officer Cory Sack had his fourth and
final surgery last Thursday and was on the mend. She noted that he was feeling well
and would be starting physical therapy. She indicated that his GoFundMe site was up to
almost $60,000 through the generosity of the community, family and friends. She
reported that the investigation was moving forward and she was confident that an arrest
would be made.
Councilor Brown asked if Officer Sack would make a full recovery.
Chief Tovrea replied that he was expected to make a full recovery in about nine months
and was excited to come back to work.
Councilor Gallagher asked Chief Tovrea to explain the Department’s procedure of
staying with the officer in the hospital.
Chief Tovrea explained that all the members of the Police Department took turns to
provide 24 hour guard at the hospital and also attended to any needs of the family,
including chores at their home.
City Manager Thorsen indicated that Chief Tovrea was an outstanding chief and the
community and staff were very fortunate to have her.

City Attorney
City Attorney Michow had no report.

EXECUTIVE SESSION AND ADJOURNMENT
Councilor Brown moved, seconded by Councilor Gallagher to move into Executive
Session pursuant to CRS 24-6-402(4)(b) for purposes of receiving legal advice
regarding Maven Properties v. Cherry Hills Village and to immediately adjourn
thereafter.
The following votes were recorded:
Weil
Gallagher
Brown
Slum

yes
yes
yes
yes

Vote on the Executive Session: 4 ayes. 0 nays. The motion carried.
The Executive Session began at 7:29 p.m.
The meeting adjourned at 8:28 p.m.

hchristman,o

Laura Gillepie, City Clerk
September 4, 2018
City Council
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CHEY HILLS VILLAGE
CoLoRADo
2450 E. Quincy Avenue
Cherry Hills Village, CO 80113
www.cherryhillsvillage.com

Village Center
Telephone 303-789-2541
FAX 303-761-9386
ITEM: lOb

MEMORANDUM

TO:

HONORABLE MAYOR STEWART AND MEMBERS OF CITY COUNCIL

FROM:

JESSICA SAGER, DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION

SUBJECT: THE 2018 AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DATE:

MAY 21,2019

ISSUE
Should City Council approve the 2018 Financial Audit Statement?
DISCUSSION
Section 3.10 of the City Charter requires an independent audit of the financial affairs by a certified
public accountant that is experienced in municipal accounting. Attached as Exhibit A is the Audit
of the Financial Statements of the City of Cherry Hills Village for year-end December 31, 2018,
including an unqualified audit letter written by the John Cutler of John Cutler & Associates. John
Cutler & Associates have audited the City’s financial statements since 2009. In the 2018 report,
Mr. Cutler stated:

“In our opinion, tile financial statements.. .present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Cherry Hills
Village as of December 31, 2018, and tile respective changes in the financial position, and
where applicable, cash flows, thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United State of America.”
STAFF ANALYSIS
Staff provided a Management Discussion and Analysis at the beginning of the audit report. A
portion of tile financial summary for 2018 include:
• The assets of tile City of Cllerry Hills Village exceeded its liabilities at the close of fiscal
year 2018 by $39.0 million (net position). Of this amount, $20.7 million (unrestricted net
position) may be used to meet tile City’s ongoing obligations to residents and creditors.
• At tile close of fiscal year 2018, the City of Cherry Hills Village governmental funds
reported combined ending fund balances of $22.1 million, a decrease of $3.7 million in
comparison with the prior year. The decrease is primarily due to tile expenditures of funds
in 2018 from the COP Fund for the construction of the Public Works Facility and City.

CHEIY HILLS VILLAGE
CoLoRADo

•
•

Approximately 45% or $10 million is available for spending at the government’s discretion
(unassigned fund balance).
Also, at the close of fiscal year 2018, the fund balance for the General Fund was $14
million, of which $4.2 million was committed to capital expenditures.
General Fund actual revenues exceeded budgeted revenue by $1 .4 million for the fiscal
year 2018 and actual expenditures were $530,057 less than budgeted expenditures.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 54 was adopted by the City in
2011. Statement 54 clarified the definitions of governmental fund types, requiring the Capital
Fund to be combined with the General Fund in the financial statements. Staff will continue to
account for the General Fund and Capital Fund separately in all monthly financial reports.
Mi’. Cutler will be attending the City Council meeting should Council have any questions for him.
RECOMMENDED MOTION
“1 move to approve the Audit of the Financial Statements of the City of Cherry Hills Village for
year-end December 3 1, 201 8.”

ATTACHMENTS
Exhibit A: 2018 Audited Financial Statements
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2018
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FINANCIAL SECTION

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Cherry Hills Village
Cherry Hills Village, Colorado
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Cherry Hills Village, as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.
Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Cherry Hills Village as of December 31, 2018, and the respective changes in financial position,
and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

600 17TH STREET SUITE 2800 SOUTH • DENVER, COLORADO 80202 •TEL 303.634.2259 •FAX 303.496.4631

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 27 and 28 be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund schedules and State Compliance listed in
the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the combining and individual fund schedules are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
financial statements as a whole.

May 9, 2019

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
As management of the City of Cherry Hills Village, we offer this narrative overview and
analysis of the financial activities of the City of Cherry Hills Village for the fiscal year
that ended December 31, 2018. Please read it in conjunction with the Auditors’ Report at
the front of this report and the City’s financial statements, which follow this section.
Financial Highlights







The assets of the City of Cherry Hills Village exceeded its liabilities at the close of
fiscal year 2018 by $39.0 million (net position). Of this amount, $20.7 million
(unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to
citizens and creditors.
At the close of fiscal year 2018, the City of Cherry Hills Village governmental funds
reported combined ending fund balances of $22.1 million, a decrease of $3.7 million
in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 45% or $10 million is available for
spending at the government’s discretion (unassigned fund balance).
At the end of the fiscal year 2018, fund balance for the general fund was $14 million,
of which $4.2 million was committed to capital expenditures.
General Fund actual revenues exceeded budgeted revenue by $1.4 million for the
fiscal year 2018 and actual expenditures were $530,057 less than budgeted
expenditures.

Overview of the Financial Statements
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Cherry
Hills Village basic financial statements. The basic financial statements are comprised of
three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements,
and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.
Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements
report information on all activities of the City. The statement of net position includes all
of the City’s assets and liabilities. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are
accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or paid.
The statement of net position presents information on all of the City of Cherry Hills
Village assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position.
Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of
whether the financial position of the City of Cherry Hills Village is improving or
deteriorating.

a

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City of Cherry Hills
Village net position changed during fiscal year 2018. All changes in net position are
reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of
the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses reported in this statement
for some items will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes
and earned but unused vacation leave).
The governmental activities of the City include general government, judicial, data
processing, community development, Village Crier, public safety, public works and parks
and recreation.
Fund financial statements. The fund financial statements provide more detailed
information about the City’s most significant funds – not the City as a whole. Funds are
accounting devices that the City uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and
spending for particular purposes.


Some funds are required by State law and bond covenants.



The City Council establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular
purposes (like the Parks and Recreation Fund) or to show that it is properly using
certain taxes and grants (like the Conservation Trust Fund and the Arapahoe County
Open Space Fund).

Governmental funds – All of the City’s basic services are included in governmental
funds, which focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets can be converted to cash
flow in and out and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending.
Consequently, the governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that
helps determine whether or not there are more or fewer financial resources that can be
spent in the near future to finance the City’s programs. Because this information does not
encompass the additional long-term focus of the government-wide statements, additional
information at the bottom of the governmental funds statement is provided that explains
the relationship between them.
Proprietary Funds – The City of Cherry Hills Village maintains one type of proprietary
fund. Enterprise Funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type
activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses an enterprise fund
to account for its Water and Sewer Fund. This fund is considered to be a major fund of
the City of Cherry Hills Village.
Financial Analysis of the City As A Whole
Net Position. As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a
government’s financial position. In the case of the City of Cherry Hills Village, assets
exceeded liabilities by $38,976,645 at the close of the 2018 fiscal year.

b

A portion of the City of Cherry Hills Village’s net assets (42%) reflects its investment in
capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment). The City of Cherry Hills
Village uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets
are not available for future spending.
An additional portion of the City of Cherry Hills Village net position (5%) represents
resources that are subject to external restrictions for how they may be used. The
remaining balance of unrestricted net assets (53% or $20,741,952) may be used to meet
the City’s obligations to citizens and creditors.
At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Cherry Hills Village is able to report
positive balances in net assets for the City as a whole, as well as for its governmental
activities as a whole. The same situation held true for the prior fiscal year.
City of Cherry Hills Village Net Position
Current and other assets
Capital assets
Total assets
Long-term liabilities outstanding
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related
debt
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net assets

$28,273,740
$28,220,986
$56,494,726
$11,432,189
$7,237,443
$18,669,632

$32,123,452
$24,275,574
$56,399,026
$12,470,856
$7,303,670
$19,774,526

$1,022,359
$130,201
$1,152,560
$1,009
$0
$1,009

$923,681
$153,813
$1,077,494
$0
$0
$0

$16,072,933
$2,031,559
$19,720,602
$37,825,094

$11,051,412
$2,435,513
$23,137,575
$36,624,500

$130,201
$0
$1,021,350
$1,151,551

$153,813
$0
$923,681
$1,077,494

Changes in Net Position
Governmental activities



Governmental-type activities increased the City’s total net position by $1,200,594
from 2017.
The increase in total net position is due to the purchase of equipment and vehicles for
the Police Department and the Public Works Department equipment. Also, the
construction of a new City Hall, in addition to a decrease in liabilities resulting from
the South Suburban asset payment for 2018.

Business Type Activities



Business-type activities increased the City’s total net position by $74,057 from 2017.
The increase is primarily due to additional tap fee revenues collected.

c

City of Cherry Hills Village Changes in Net Position
Governmental Governmental
Activities
Activities
2018
2017
Revenues
Program Revenues
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
General Revenues
Property taxes
Sales and Use taxes
Specific Ownership taxes
Franchise fees
Miscellaneous
Investment earnings
Special Item, Donation of Land
Total revenues
Expenses
General Government
Judicial
Public Safety
Public Works
Community Development
Parks, Recreation, and Open Space
Village Crier
Other
Total expenses
Increases in net position
Net position, beginning
Net position, ending

Businesstype
Activities
2018

Businesstype
Activities
2017

$1,765,772
$397,879
$234,579

$1,592,499
$353,993
$220,457

$83,987
$0
$25,100

$95,439
$0
$31,100

$4,607,972
$2,504,618
$335,343
$541,160
$111,623
$520,712
$0

$4,547,811
$2,345,487
$389,520
$588,307
$229,394
$280,908
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$15,843
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$8,296
$0

$11,019,658

$10,548,376

$124,930

$134,835

$1,816,313
$91,342
$3,240,895
$1,152,899
$585,674

$1,628,583
$88,587
$3,374,876
$1,132,499
$480,076

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$2,389,747
$32,959
$509,235
$9,819,064
$1,200,594
$36,624,500
$37,825,094

d

$1,976,775
$0
$0
$31,585
$0
$0
$344,346
$50,873
$45,205
$9,057,327
$50,873
$45,205
$1,491,049
$74,057
$89,630
$35,133,451 $1,077,494
$987,864
$36,624,500 $1,151,551 $1,077,494

Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds

Revenue by Source - Governmental Activities
Franchise Fees
5%
Specific Ownership
Tax
3%

Investment earnings
5%

Miscellaneous
1%

Charges for services
16%
Operating grants and
contributions
3%
Capital grants and
contributions
2%

Sales and Use taxes
23%
Property taxes
42%

The City of Cherry Hills Village uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. In 2011, the City adopted a new
accounting pronouncement which requires it to classify fund balance based mainly on the
extent to which the City is bound to honor constraints on how the funds are allowed to be
spent.
Governmental Funds
The focus of the City of Cherry Hills Village governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing the City of Cherry Hills Village financing
requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a
government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.
As of the end of fiscal year 2018, the City of Cherry Hills Village governmental funds
reported combined ending fund balances of $22.1 million, a decrease of $3.7 million in
comparison with the prior year. Approximately 45% of this total amount ($10 million)
constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at the City’s
discretion. The remainder of the fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not
available for new spending because it has already been committed, restricted or is
nonspendable.

e

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Cherry Hills Village (and is
combined with the Capital Fund for audit purposes). At the end of fiscal year 2018,
unassigned fund balance of the General Fund, combined with the Capital Fund, was $10
million; while total fund balance reached $14.6 million. As a measure of the Fund’s
liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund
balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 146% of total
General Fund/Capital Fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 47% of that
same amount.
The Parks and Recreation Fund began receiving revenues in 2006. This fund had a
positive balance of $1,671,305 at the end of 2018 and will continue to receive revenues
as ordered by the South Suburban exclusion.
In 2017 a Capital Projects Fund was created to account for the Certificate of Participation
(COP) proceeds and expenditures for the new Public Works Facility, the new City Hall
and the improvements to John Meade Park/Alan Hutto Memorial Commons. This fund
had a positive balance of $3,757,872 at the end of 2018. The only revenue this fund will
receive is interest earnings.
South Suburban Exclusion
On March 22, 2007 the Colorado Court of Appeals sent the litigation between The City of
Cherry Hills Village and South Suburban Park and Recreation District back to the trial
judge for further proceedings. This litigation involves the City’s decision to withdraw
from South Suburban following the 2003 City election authorizing the exclusion.
Following the trial in August 2004, the trial judge approved the exclusion, but ordered the
City to pay South Suburban $9,660,838, the fair market value of certain parks and
facilities in the City.
Both parties appealed the trial judge’s order. Under the Court of Appeals decision, the
exclusion stands, but the Court held that Colorado law does not require payment of fair
market value as a condition for exclusion under these circumstances. Upon appeal, the
trial judge was to reconsider the evidence and make new findings to support any
judgment awarding compensation to South Suburban. In May 2008, the trial court issued
a second opinion, again ordering the City to pay South Suburban the sum of $9,660,838.
This second opinion contained virtually no explanation of how the trial court arrived at
the precise figure it had previously determined was the fair market value of the parks in
the City and made no specific findings on the other factors that the Court of Appeals
directed the trial court to consider.
As a result, in May 2008 the City filed an appeal with the Colorado Court of Appeals.
Also in the spring of 2008, the City filed a motion to stay payment of the $9,660,838
judgment pending the decision by the Colorado Court of Appeals. The court granted the
City’s motion, but stipulated that the City must pay the District the 2007 asset payment
plus interest from December 1, 2007 to the date of payment, which was August 1, 2008.

f

The City received an unfavorable ruling by the Colorado Court of Appeals in 2009 and
was required to make the principal and interest payments on the assets for 2008 and 2009.
Proprietary Fund
The Water and Sewer Fund accounts for all revenue and expenses associated with the
consolidation and operations of water and sewer utilities under the auspices of the City.
In 2018, sewer repairs and maintenance fees of $430 per year were charged to residents
under the Englewood total service agreement. Revenues exceeded expenditures in this
fund by $74,057 in 2018.
General Fund Budgetary Highlights
A supplemental appropriation was made to the Conservation Trust Fund in 2018 to pay
the City’s portion of the Hampden Underpass project.
The General Fund expenditures in 2018 were $892,062 under budget and revenues were
$1,350,680 over budget. The General Fund balance increased by $1,567,042 and had an
ending fund balance of $14,617,609.
Capital Asset and Debt Administration
Capital assets. The City of Cherry Hills Village investment in capital assets as of
December 31, 2018 amounts to $28.3 million. This investment in capital assets includes
land, buildings, vehicles, equipment, art and sewer lines.
Capital asset events during the 2018 fiscal year included the following:



New police motorcycle and vehicle in the amount of $83,905
Construction in progress in the amount of $3,989,856
City of Cherry Hills Village’s Capital Assets
(net of accumulated depreciation)
2018
Land
CIP
Buildings and Improvements
Software
Equipment
Art
Sewer Lines
Total Capital Assets

$15,169,580
$4,537,738
$7,456,877
$18,268
$760,724
$277,799
$130,201
$28,351,187

g

2017
$15,393,400
$3,963,553
$3,628,612
$46,576
$926,134
$317,299
$153,813
$24,429,387

Long-term debt. At the end of the 2018 fiscal year, the City of Cherry Hills Village had
total long-term debt outstanding of $12,484,345. This total debt represents the South
Suburban obligation ($757,156), accrued compensated absences ($336,292) and
Certificates of Participation ($11,390,897).
Economic Factors, Next Year’s Budget and Rates
The City of Cherry Hills Village sales tax rate remains at 3.5% and the mill levy is
14.722.
In preparing the 2019 budget, the City of Cherry Hills Village had to take several factors
into consideration. In 2011, the City Council approved the creation of a new Capital
Fund and approximately $9 million of the General Fund balance was transferred to the
Capital Fund at that time. The 2019 budget was adopted with a very slight increase in
property tax revenues (less than 1%) from 2017 and also a small increase in sales tax, use
tax, building permit revenue and interest income. All other revenues would remain
constant or increase slightly.
During the 2018 fiscal year, fund balance in the General Fund (to include the Capital
Fund) increased to $14.6 million (from $13 million). The General Fund (to include the
Capital Fund) balance is projected to end 2019 at approximately $12.8 million.
The adopted 2019 fiscal year total budget appropriations are $16.7 million, a decrease of
$2,752,714 from 2018. This decrease is due to the completion of the Public Works
Facility at the beginning of 2018 and the majority of the expenditures for the new City
Hall at the end of 2018. Two of the three major projects; a new Public Works Facility, a
new City Hall and improvements to John Meade Park/Alan Hutto Memorial Commons,
will continue into 2019. The City financed these three projects with the proceeds from
Certificates of Participation (COP’s) in the amount of $11.8 million.
Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Cherry Hills
Village’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or
requests for additional financial information should be addressed to:
Jessica Sager
Director of Finance and Administration
(303) 783-2730
City of Cherry Hills Village
2450 East Quincy Avenue
Cherry Hills Village, Colorado 80113
Or

jsager@cherryhillsvillage.com
h

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
As of December 31, 2018

BUSINESS
GOVERNMENTAL
TYPE
ACTIVITIES
ACTIVITIES

ASSETS
Cash and Investments
Restricted Cash and Investments
Receivables
Property Taxes
Sales and Other
Accounts Receivable
Capital Assets, Not Depreciated
Capital Assets, Depreciated
Net of Accumulated Depreciation
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Retainage Payable
Accrued Expenses
Unearned Revenue
Escrow Deposits
Accrued Interest Payable
Noncurrent Liabilities
Due within One Year
Due in More Than One Year
TOTAL LIABILITIES
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Property Tax Revenue
NET POSITION
Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for Parks and Recreation
Restricted for Emergencies
Restricted for Public Art
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION

TOTALS
2018

2017

$ 18,669,715
4,474,848

$ 1,020,639
-

$ 19,690,354
4,474,848

$ 19,439,394
8,461,752

4,712,324
220,782
196,071
19,707,318

1,720
-

4,712,324
220,782
197,791
19,707,318

4,614,575
211,793
319,619
19,356,953

8,513,668

130,201

8,643,869

5,072,434

56,494,726

1,152,560

57,647,286

57,476,520

977,735
179,160
26,974
40,000
193,564
55,530

1,009
-

978,744
179,160
26,974
40,000
193,564
55,530

1,475,659
24,650
33,362
40,000
85,815
-

1,052,156
11,432,189

-

1,052,156
11,432,189

1,029,609
12,470,856

13,957,308

1,009

13,958,317

15,159,951

4,712,324

-

4,712,324

4,614,575

16,072,933
1,671,305
328,000
32,254
19,720,602

130,201
1,021,350

16,203,134
1,671,305
328,000
32,254
20,741,952

11,205,225
2,095,734
314,000
25,779
24,061,256

$ 37,825,094

$ 1,151,551

$ 38,976,645

$ 37,701,994

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
1

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended December 31, 2018

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Governmental Activities
General Government
Judicial
Community Development
Village Crier
Public Safety
Public Works
Parks and Recreation
Interest on Long Term Debt

Total Governmental Activities
Business-Type Activities
Water and Sewer
Total Business-Type Activities
Total Primary Government

PROGRAM REVENUES
OPERATING
CAPITAL
CHARGES FOR
GRANTS AND
GRANTS AND
SERVICES
CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS

EXPENSES

$ 1,816,313
91,342
585,674
32,959
3,240,895
1,152,899
2,389,747
509,235

$

279,377
1,378,783
16,067
91,545
-

$

397,879
-

$

9,819,064

1,765,772

50,873

83,987

-

25,100

50,873

83,987

-

25,100

$ 9,869,937

$

1,849,759

397,879

234,579
-

$

397,879

234,579

$

259,679

GENERAL REVENUES
Property Taxes
Specific Ownership Taxes
Sales and Use Taxes
Franchise Fees
Interest
Miscellaneous
TOTAL GENERAL REVENUES
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION Beginning
NET POSITION Ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE AND
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES

$

(1,816,313)
188,035
793,109
(16,892)
(3,149,350)
(755,020)
(2,155,168)
(509,235)

BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES

$

(7,420,834)

$

-

TOTALS
2018

$

-

(1,816,313)
188,035
793,109
(16,892)
(3,149,350)
(755,020)
(2,155,168)
(509,235)

2017

$

(1,628,583)
255,792
658,695
(15,077)
(3,282,035)
(778,506)
(1,756,318)
(344,346)

(7,420,834)

(6,890,378)

-

58,214

58,214

81,334

-

58,214

58,214

81,334

(7,420,834)

58,214

(7,362,620)

(6,809,044)

4,607,972
335,343
2,504,618
541,160
520,712
111,623

15,843
-

4,607,972
335,343
2,504,618
541,160
536,555
111,623

4,547,811
389,520
2,345,487
588,307
289,204
229,394

8,621,428

15,843

8,637,271

8,389,723

1,200,594

74,057

1,274,651

1,580,679

36,624,500

1,077,494

37,701,994

36,121,315

37,825,094

$

1,151,551

$

38,976,645

$

37,701,994

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
As of December 31, 2018

ASSETS
Cash and Investments
Restricted Cash and Investments
Due From Other Funds
Property Taxes Receivable
Accounts Receivable
Other Receivables
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS,
AND FUND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Retainage Payable
Accrued Expenses
Due To Other Funds
Unearned Revenue
Escrow Deposits

General
Fund

Parks and
Recreation
Fund

$ 14,417,750
80,701
2,497,532
194,942
204,976

$ 1,755,136
2,214,792
1,129
15,806

$

4,474,848
224,319
-

$ 2,496,829
-

$ 17,395,901

$ 3,986,863

$ 4,699,167

$ 2,496,829

$

$

$

$

61,805
25,391

99,183
1,583

193,564

TOTAL LIABILITIES
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Property Tax Revenue
FUND EQUITY
Restricted
Committed
Unassigned
TOTAL FUND EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS, AND FUND EQUITY

-

681,434
179,160
80,701
-

135,313
224,319
40,000
-

100,766

2,497,532

2,214,792

360,254
4,226,361
10,030,994

1,671,305
-

3,757,872
-

2,097,197
-

14,617,609

1,671,305

3,757,872

2,097,197

$ 17,395,901

$ 3,986,863

$ 4,699,167

$ 2,496,829

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore,
are not reported in the funds.
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and are not reported in
the funds. These include a long term obligation of ($757,156), COPs Payable ($10,830,000),
Premium on COPs Payable ($560,897), accrued interest payable ($55,530), and Compensated
Absences ($336,292).
Net position of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

941,295

Other
Governmental
Funds

280,760

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:
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Capital
Projects
Fund

-

399,632

-

TOTAL
GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS
2018
2017

$ 18,669,715
4,474,848
305,020
4,712,324
196,071
220,782

$ 18,516,343
8,461,752
4,614,575
318,989
211,793

$ 28,578,760

$ 32,123,452

$

977,735
179,160
26,974
305,020
40,000
193,564

$ 1,475,659
24,650
33,362
40,000
85,815

1,722,453

1,659,486

4,712,324

4,614,575

6,215,323
5,897,666
10,030,994

11,042,869
6,828,541
7,977,981

22,143,983

25,849,391

28,220,986

24,275,574

(12,539,875)

(13,500,465)

$ 37,825,094

$ 36,624,500

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Year Ended December 31, 2018

General
Fund

Parks and
Recreation
Fund

$ 2,491,738
335,343
2,477,617
541,160
1,378,783
424,880
370,922
112,729
288,508

$ 2,116,234
30,246

8,421,680

2,146,480

134,055

317,443

1,224,006
91,342
585,674
32,959
3,078,303
975,153
-

1,391,766
-

16,120
-

51,622
511,226
-

128,250
203,754
535,197

901,359
274,338
3,446

4,720,551

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

6,854,638

2,570,909

4,736,671

562,848

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

1,567,042

(424,429)

(4,602,616)

(245,405)

REVENUES
Property Taxes
Specific Ownership Taxes
Sales and Use Taxes
Franchise Fees
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Miscellaneous
Interest
TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Current
General Government
Judicial
Community Development
Village Crier
Public Safety
Public Works
Parks and Recreation
Debt Issuance Costs
Debt Service
Principal
Interest
Capital Outlay

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from Issuance of Debt

-

-

Capital
Projects
Fund
$

134,055

-

Other
Governmental
Funds
$

234,579
14,961
67,903

-

-

NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCES

1,567,042

(424,429)

(4,602,616)

(245,405)

FUND BALANCES, Beginning

13,050,567

2,095,734

8,184,481

2,518,609

176,007

(176,007)

$ 3,757,872

$ 2,097,197

Prior Period Adjustment

-

FUND BALANCES, Ending

$ 14,617,609

$ 1,671,305

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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TOTAL
GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS
2018
2017

$ 4,607,972
335,343
2,477,617
541,160
1,378,783
659,459
370,922
127,690
520,712

$ 4,547,811
389,520
2,316,683
588,307
1,138,771
603,254
437,220
245,902
280,908

11,019,658

10,548,376

1,291,748
91,342
585,674
32,959
3,078,303
975,153
1,902,992
-

1,363,234
88,587
480,076
31,585
3,157,440
995,603
1,256,422
204,671

1,029,609
478,092
5,259,194

1,019,804
368,733
4,650,515

14,725,066

13,616,670

(3,705,408)

(3,068,294)

-

12,004,671

(3,705,408)

8,936,377

25,849,391

16,913,014

$ 22,143,983

$ 25,849,391

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended December 31, 2018

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities
are Different Because:
Net Changes in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

$ (3,705,408)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities,
the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense. This is the amount by which capital outlay $4,849,025 exceeded depreciation ($445,607)
and loss on disposal of assets ($458,006) in the current period.

3,945,412

Repayment of long-term debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment
reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. These include debt principal payments of
$1,029,609, amortization of premium $24,387, change in accrued compensated absences of ($37,876),
and change in accrued interest of ($55,530).
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

960,590
$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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1,200,594

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE
As of December 31, 2018

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Investments
Accounts Receivable

2018
$ 1,020,639
1,720

Total Current Assets

1,022,359

923,681

130,201

153,813

1,152,560

1,077,494

Noncurrent Assets
Capital Assets, net of accumulated depreciation
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
TOTAL LIABILITIES

2017
$

923,051
630

1,009

-

1,009

-

NET POSITION
Investment in Capital Assets
Unrestricted

130,201
1,021,350

153,813
923,681

TOTAL NET POSITION

$ 1,151,551

$ 1,077,494

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE
Year Ended December 31, 2018
2018
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services

$

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

83,987

2017
$

95,439

83,987

95,439

18,044
9,217
23,612

7,252
14,341
23,612

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

50,873

45,205

OPERATING INCOME

33,114

50,234

15,843

8,296

TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

15,843

8,296

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

48,957

58,530

25,100

31,100

74,057

89,630

1,077,494

987,864

1,151,551

$ 1,077,494

OPERATING EXPENSES
Operations
General and Administrative
Depreciation

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest Income

Capital Contributions- Tap Fees
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION Beginning
NET POSITION, Ending

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE
Year Ended December 31, 2018
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
2018
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Received from Customers
Cash Paid to Suppliers
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

$

82,897
(26,252)
56,645

2017
$

95,205
(21,593)
73,612

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital Contributions

25,100

31,100

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received

15,843

8,296

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

97,588

113,008

923,051

810,043

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, Beginning
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, Ending
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Income
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Depreciation
Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Accounts Receivable
Accounts Payable
Total Adjustments
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

$ 1,020,639

$

923,051

$

$

50,234

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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33,114

23,612

23,612

(1,090)
1,009
23,531

(234)
23,378

56,645

$

73,612

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
AGENCY FUND- SPECIAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO.7
December 31, 2018

Agency
Fund
ASSETS
Cash and Investments
Accounts Receivable

$

17,475
103

TOTAL ASSETS

$

17,578

LIABILITIES
Due to Property Owners

17,578

TOTAL LIABILITIES

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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17,578

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2018
NOTE 1:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The City of Cherry Hills Village, Colorado (the “City”) is a continuation of the City of Cherry
Hills Village after adoption of its Home Rule Charter in 1966. The City is governed by a
Mayor and six-member council elected by the residents.
The accounting policies of the City of Cherry Hills Village, Colorado conform to generally
accepted accounting principles as applicable to governments. Following is a summary of
the more significant policies.
Reporting Entity
In accordance with governmental accounting standards, the City of Cherry Hills Village has
considered the possibility of inclusion of additional entities in its basic financial statements.
The definition of the reporting entity is based primarily on financial accountability. The City
is financially accountable for organizations that make up its legal entity. It is also financially
accountable for legally separate organizations if City officials appoint a voting majority of
the organization’s governing body and either it is able to impose its will on that organization
or there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or to
impose specific financial burdens on, the City. The City may also be financially accountable
for governmental organizations that are fiscally dependent upon it.
Based on the application of these criteria, the City does not include additional organizations
in its reporting entity.
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the
statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the City.
For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent
on fees and charges for support.
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of the given
function or segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment.
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2018
NOTE 1:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)
Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly
benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2)
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly
included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds.
Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements.
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in
the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as
soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as
they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they
are collected within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.
Property taxes, specific ownership taxes, grants, and interest associated with the current
fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as
revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be
measurable and available only when cash is received by the City.
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated
absences, are recorded only when payment is due.
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2018
NOTE 1:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
(Continued)
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing
and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.
Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s practice
to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
In the fund financial statements, the City reports the following major governmental funds:
The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the City, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
The Parks and Recreation Fund accounts for allocated property tax revenues for parks
and recreation activities.
The Capital Projects Fund accounts for the City’s proceeds from issuance of Certificates
of Participation and related capital expenditures.
The City reports the following major proprietary fund:
The Water Fund accounts for the financial activities associated with the provision of
water services.
Additionally, the City reports the following fund type:
The Agency Fund accounts for resources to support the activities of the Special
Improvement District No. 7. The City holds all assets in a purely custodial capacity.
Cash and Investments
Cash equivalents include investments with original maturities of three months or less.
Investments are recorded at fair value.
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2018
NOTE 1:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Capital Assets
Capital assets, which include property and equipment, are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial
statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of
more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded
at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital
assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.
Property and equipment of the City is depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:
Buildings and Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Vehicles
Infrastructure (Sewer Lines)

50 years
10-25 years
5-10 years
25-50 years

Compensated Absences
The City allows its employees to accrue personal time off (PTO). Employees are expected
to manage their PTO banks throughout the year, and banks should not exceed 200 hours.
Any excess leave accumulated (over 200 hours) at the end of the year shall be subject to
forfeiture except where the employee has been denied the opportunity to take vacation time,
or where special circumstances exist, and approval to exceed the limits has been authorized
by the City Manager. If approved, hours in excess of the 200 hour maximum will be paid at
100% of the employee’s regular hourly pay rate during the year in which the PTO was
accrued. Upon separation of employment, up to 200 hours of unused PTO are paid out
using the employee’s regular hourly pay rate. Hours in excess of 200 are paid out at a rate
of 50% of the employee’s regular hourly pay rate.
These compensated absences are recognized when due in the governmental fund types. A
liability has been recorded in the government-wide financial statements for the accrued
compensated absences.
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2018
NOTE 1:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Long-Term Obligations
In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund type in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type
statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the
life of the bonds using the straight-line method.
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of
debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are
reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other
financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds
received, are reported as debt service expenditures.
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position and balance sheets will sometimes
report a separate section for deferred outflows or resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred outflow of resources, represents a consumption of net position and
fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow
of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position and balance sheets will
sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows or resources. This separate
financial statement element, deferred inflow of resources, represents an acquisition of net position
and fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow
of resources (revenue) until that time.
Property Taxes
Property taxes are levied on November 1 and attach as an enforceable lien on property on
January 1. Taxes are payable in full on April 30 or in two installments on February 28 and
June 15. The County Treasurer’s office collects property taxes and remits to the City on a
monthly basis.
Since property tax revenues are collected in arrears during the succeeding year, a receivable
and corresponding deferred revenue are recorded at December 31. As the tax is collected
in the succeeding year, the deferred revenue is recognized as revenue and the receivable is
reduced.
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

NOTE 1:

Fund Balance Classification
The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on classifications
that comprise a hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound
to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in the respective
governmental funds can be spent. The classifications used in the governmental fund
financial statements are as follows:


Nonspendable – This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they
are either not spendable in form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained
intact. At December 31, 2018, the City does not report any nonspendable fund balances.



Restricted – This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been placed
on the use of the resources either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through a
debt covenant), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or (b)
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The City has
classified the following amounts as restricted:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.



General Fund: Emergency Reserves of $328,000 are restricted because
their use is restricted by State Statute for declared emergencies. In addition
donations in the amount of $32,254 are restricted for art purchases.
Capital Projects Fund: The fund balance in this fund is restricted for capital
expenditures.
Land Donation Fund: The fund balance in this fund is restricted because
their use is restricted by donors.
Open Space Fund: The fund balance in this fund is restricted because their
use is restricted by vote.
Conservation Trust Fund: The fund balance in this fund is restricted
because their use is restricted by State statute.

Committed – This classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific
purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the City Council. These
amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the City Council removes or changes
the specified use by taking the same type of action (ordinance or resolution) that was
employed when the funds were initially committed. This classification also includes
contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources have been specifically
committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements. As of December 31, 2018,
the City committed $4,226,361 of its General Fund fund balance to be used for capital
projects. In addition, the City has committed the fund balance in the Park and Recreation
Fund to be used for parks and open space projects and maintenance.
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

NOTE 1:


Assigned – This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the City Council
intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. As of
December 31, 2018, the City does not have any assigned fund balances.



Unassigned – This classification includes the residual fund balance for the General Fund.
The Unassigned classification also includes negative residual fund balance of any other
governmental fund that cannot be eliminated by offsetting of Assigned fund balance
amounts.
The City would typically use restricted fund balances first, followed by Committed resources,
and then Assigned resources, as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to
selectively spend Unassigned resources.
Comparative Data
Comparative total data for the prior year has been presented in the accompanying financial
statements in order to provide an understanding of changes in the City’s financial position
and operations. However, complete comparative data in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles has not been presented since its inclusion would make the financial
statements unduly complex and difficult to read.
Data in these columns do not present financial position or results of operations in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Neither is such data comparable
to a consolidation. Interfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this
data.

NOTE 2:

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
Budgets and Budgetary Accounting
The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:


In October, the City staff submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget
for the fiscal year commencing the following January 1. The operating budget
includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.



Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2018
NOTE 2:

NOTE 3:

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)


Prior to December 31, the budget is legally enacted through passage of a
resolution.



The City Administration is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between
departments within any fund. However, any revisions that alter the total
expenditures of any fund must be approved by the City Council.



Budgets are legally adopted for all funds of the City. Budgets for the General,
Capital Projects, and Special Revenue Funds are adopted on a basis consistent with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The Budgetary comparison
presented for the Enterprise Fund is presented on a non-GAAP budgetary basis.
Capital outlay and debt payments are budgeted as expenditures.



Budgeted amounts in the financial statements are as originally adopted or as
amended by the City Council. All appropriations lapse at year end. Colorado
governments may not exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund level.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
A summary of deposits and investments as of December 31, 2018 follows:
Petty Cash
Cash Deposits
Investments

$

Total

350
2,121,334
22,060,993

$ 24,182,677

Cash and investments are reported in the financial statements as follows:
Governmental Activities - Unrestricted
Governmental Activities – Restricted
Business-type Activities
Fiduciary Funds
Total

$ 18,669,715
4,474,848
1,020,639
17,475
$ 24,182,677
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2018
NOTE 3:

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
Deposits
Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government’s deposits
may not be returned to it. The Colorado Public Deposit Protection Act (PDPA) requires
that all units of local government deposit cash in eligible public depositories. Eligibility is
determined by state regulations. At December 31, 2018, State regulatory commissioners
have indicated that all financial institutions holding deposits for the City are eligible public
depositories. Amounts on deposit in excess of federal insurance levels must be collateralized
by eligible collateral as determined by the PDPA. PDPA allows the financial institution to
create a single collateral pool for all public funds held. The pool is to be maintained by
another institution or held in trust for all the uninsured public deposits as a group. The
market value of the collateral must be at least equal to 102% of the uninsured deposits.
The City has no policy regarding custodial credit risk for deposits.
At December 31, 2018, the City had deposits with financial institutions with a carrying
amount of $2,121,334. The bank balances with the financial institutions were $2,295,983.
Of these balances, $500,915 was covered by federal depository insurance and $1,795,068
was covered by collateral held by authorized escrow agents in the financial institutions name
(PDPA).
Investments
Interest Rate Risk
The City has a formal investment policy that limits interest rate risk by structuring the
investment portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash requirements for ongoing
operations, thereby avoiding the need to sell securities on the open market prior to maturity
and by investing operating funds primarily with durations of no longer than five years,
money market mutual funds, or similar investment pools.
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2018
NOTE 3:

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
Credit Risk
Colorado statutes specify in which instruments the units of local government may invest
which includes:







Obligations of the United States and certain U.S. government agency securities
General obligation and revenue bonds of U.S. local government entities
Local government investment pools
Written repurchase agreements collateralized by certain authorized securities
Certain money market funds
Guaranteed investment contracts

The above investments are authorized for all funds and fund types used by Colorado
municipalities.
Local Government Investment Pools
The City had invested $351,124 in the Colorado Surplus Asset Fund Trust (CSAFE) an
investment vehicle established for local government entities in Colorado pursuant to Title
24, Article 75, Part 7 of the Colorado Revised Statues, to pool surplus funds for investment
purposes. The State Securities Commissioner administers and enforces the requirements of
creating and operating the Pools. CSAFE reports its underlying investments at amortized
cost and is considered a qualifying external investment pool under GASB Statement 79.
CSAFE operates similar to money market funds where each share is equal in value to $1.00.
The fair value of the position in the pools is the same as the value of the pooled shares.
CSAFE is rated AAAm by Standard and Poor’s. The designated custodial bank provides
safekeeping and depository services in connection with the direct investment and withdrawal
functions. Substantially all securities are owned by the pools and held by the Federal Reserve
Bank in the account maintained for the custodial bank. The custodian’s internal records
identify the investments owned by the pools. Investments of the pools comply with state
statues, consisting of U.S. Treasury bills, notes and note strips, repurchase agreements, U.S.
Instrumentalities, Commercial Paper, Bank Deposits and Money Market Funds. CSAFE
does not have any limitations or restrictions on participant withdrawals.
The City had invested $21,709,869 in the Colorado Government Liquid Asset Trust
(ColoTrust) which has a credit rating of AAAm by Standard and Poor’s. ColoTrust is an
investment vehicle established for local government entities in Colorado to pool surplus
funds and is regulated by the State Securities Commissioner. It operates similarly to a money
market fund and each share is equal in value to $1.00. Investments consist of U.S. Treasury
and U.S. Agency securities, and repurchase agreements collateralized by U.S. Treasury and
U.S. Agency securities. A designated custodial bank provides safekeeping and depository
services in connection with the direct investment and withdrawal functions.
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2018
NOTE 3:

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
Local Government Investment Pools (Continued)
Substantially all securities owned are held by the Federal Reserve Bank in the account
maintained for the custodial bank. The custodian’s internal records identify the investments
owned by the entities.
ColoTrust is not a 2a7-like external investment pool. The unit of account is each share held,
and the value of the position would be the fair value of the pool’s share price multiplied by
the number of shares held. The government-investor does not “look through” the pool to
report a pro rata share of the pool’s investments, receivables, and payables.
Restricted Cash and Investments
At December 31, 2018, cash in the amount of $4,474,848 is restricted for capital
expenditures in the Capital Projects Fund.

NOTE 4:

CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital assets activity for the year ended December 31, 2018 is summarized below:

Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, not depreciated
Land
Construction in Progress

Balances
12/31/17
$

Total Capital Assets, not depreciated

15,393,400
3,963,553

Additions
$

3,989,856

Balances
12/31/18

Deletions
$

223,820 $
3,415,671

15,169,580
4,537,738

19,356,953

3,989,856

3,639,491

19,707,318

Capital Assets, depreciated
Buildings
Software
Art
Machinery and Equipment
Total Capital Assets, depreciated

4,515,361
104,367
395,000
2,817,997
7,832,705

4,195,889
78,951
4,274,840

730,532
36,526
35,121
802,179

7,980,718
67,841
395,000
2,861,807
11,305,366

Less Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings
Software
Art
Machinery and Equipment
Total Accumulated Depreciation

886,749
57,791
77,701
1,891,843
2,914,084

159,614
2,632
39,500
243,861
445,607

522,522
10,850
34,621
567,993

523,841
49,573
117,201
2,101,083
2,791,698

Total Capital Assets, depreciated, Net

4,918,621

3,829,233

234,186

8,513,668

Governmental Activities,
Capital Assets, Net

$

24,275,574
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7,819,089

$

3,873,677

$

28,220,986

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2018
NOTE 4:

CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)
Balances
12/31/17
Business-Type Activities
Capital Assets, depreciated
Sewer Lines
Total Capital Assets, depreciated

$

708,364 $
708,364

Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Sewer Lines
Total Accumulated Depreciation
Business-Type Activities,
Capital Assets, Net

Additions
-

554,551
554,551
$

$

-

23,612
23,612

153,813 $

Balances
12/31/18

Deletions
$

-

(23,612)

$

708,364
708,364
578,163
578,163

-

$

130,201

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the City as follows:

Governmental Activities
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Parks and Recreation

$

Total

29,183
162,092
177,746
76,586

$ 445,607

NOTE 5: LONG-TERM DEBT
Governmental Activities
Following is a summary of long-term debt transactions for the governmental activities for the
year ended December 31, 2018.
Balance
12/31/17

Additions

South Suburban Obligation $ 1,501,765 $
2017 COPs
11,115,000
2017 COPs Premium
585,284
Accrued Compensated
Absences
298,416
Total

$ 13,500,465 $

- $
37,876

Payments

Balance
12/31/18

744,609 $ 757,156 $
285,000
10,830,000
24,387
560,897
-

336,292

Due In
One Year
757,156
295,000
-

38,876 $ 1,053,996 $ 12,484,345 $ 1,052,156

Accrued Compensated Absences are being paid from resources generated by the General
Fund.
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2018
NOTE 5: LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
South Suburban Obligation
The City initiated exclusion from the South Suburban Parks and Recreation District (the
“District’). The resulting litigation produced an order from the District Court dated
November 2004. The order requires the City to pay the District $9,660,838 for the
conveyance and transfer of facilities, including water rights, parks, trails, and other
considerations. The City’s appeals process ended in November 2009 with a final decision by
the Colorado Supreme Court, denying the appeal. The City is required to make annual
principal and interest payments, beginning in December 2006 through 2019. Interest on the
obligation accrues at the two-year Treasury bill rate.
2017 Certificates of Participation (COPs)
On February 28, 2017, the City issued Certificates of Participation, Series 2017, in the amount
of $11,395,000. Proceeds are used to finance the construction of buildings and improvements
to City owned park property. The certificates carry interest rates ranging from 2% to 5% per
annum. Principal payments are due annually on November 15 and interest payments are due
on May 15 and November 15 through 2041.
Certificates maturing in the years 2017 through 2026 are not subject to redemption prior to
their respective maturity dates. Certificates maturing in the year 2027 and thereafter are
subject to redemption at the option of the City on December 1, 2026 and any date thereafter
at a redemption price equal to par plus accrued interest to the date of redemption. Certificates
maturing on December 1, 2036 are also subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption by
lot on December 1 of each year at a redemption price equal to the principal amount plus
accrued interest to the redemption date.
Annual debt service requirements for the outstanding debt at December 31, 2018 are as
follows:
Year Ended December 31,

Principal

Interest

Total

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024-2028
2029-2033
2034-2038
2039-2041

$ 1,052,156 $ 444,884 $ 1,497,040
305,000
435,388
740,388
315,000
426,238
741,238
325,000
416,788
741,788
335,000
407,036
742,036
1,895,000
1,804,188
3,699,188
2,370,000
1,330,926
3,700,926
2,930,000
768,748
3,698,748
2,060,000
156,562
2,216,562

Total Debt Service Requirements

$11,587,156 $ 6,190,758 $17,777,914
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2018
NOTE 6: RETIREMENT COMMITMENTS
Police Pension Plan
Plan Description - The City contributes to a single employer money purchase pension plan
(Plan) on behalf of police officers. All full time, paid police employees of the City are
members of the Plan.
Funding Policy - The contribution requirements of plan members and the City are established
and may be amended by the City Council. Both the City and the employee contribute 8.0%
of the employee’s covered salary. Employees vest in 25% of the City contributions after one
year of employment and an additional 25% each year thereafter. Employees fully vest after
four years of participation in the Plan. During the year ending December 31, 2018 the City
contributed $170,452 to the Plan, equal to the required contributions. All Plan assets are
managed by the International City/County Management Association Retirement
Corporation.
Non-Sworn Managers Pension Plan
The City contributes to a single-employer defined contribution money purchase pension plan
(the “Plan”) on behalf of non-sworn managers. All non-sworn managers are required to
participate in the Plan. The contribution requirements are established and may be amended
by the City Council. The city is required to contribute 5% the employee’s covered salary and
employees contribute 11% of covered salary. Employees fully vest in the Plan immediately.
During the year ended December 31, 2018, the City contributed $33,207 to the Plan, equal
to the required contributions. All Plan assets are managed by the International City/County
Management Association Retirement Corporation.
Deferred 457 Compensation Plan
The City has a deferred compensation plan (the “Plan”) created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 457. Participation in the Plan is optional for employees. The City
matches the contribution of participating employees up to 3% of sworn police officer salaries
and up to 5% of other non-management employee salaries. Total contributions to the Plan
during the year ended December 31, 2018 were $254,838. The Plan is administered by the
International City/County Management Association Retirement Corporation.
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2018
NOTE 7: CONSOLIDATION OF WATER AND SANITATION DISTRICTS
The City has taken action to dissolve certain water and sanitation districts and other entities
which have provided services to areas within the City limits. The City will provide water and
sanitation services to these and future areas through service contracts with the Board of
Water Commissioners to the City and County of Denver (Denver).
Denver
The City has entered into a “total service” contract with Denver to provide water service
within the City’s service area, even though only part of the City is being served at this time.
Although the City retains legal title to the water distribution facilities, Denver is responsible
for all operations and maintenance, including all replacements of the facilities. Denver bills
users within the City directly.
Englewood
The City has entered into a “total service” contract with Englewood to provide water within
two small areas of the City. Englewood is responsible for all operations and maintenance,
including all replacements of the distribution facilities within the service areas and bills users
directly.
NOTE 8: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Special Improvement District No. 7
In 2000, the Special Improvement District No. 7 (the “District”) issued $595,000 Special
Assessment Bonds, Taxable Series 2000A and $930,000 Special Assessment Bonds, Tax
Exempt Series 2000B. These bonds were issued to finance improvements within the District.
The bonds accrued interest at rates ranging from 5.8% to 8.75% per year.
The Series 2000A bonds were paid in full as of December 31, 2011. During the year ended
December 31, 2012, the District issued $585,000 Special Improvement District Revenue
Refunding Note, Series 2012 to advance refund the Special Assessment Bonds, Tax Exempt
Series 2000B. The note accrues interest at a rate of 2.6% per year. Interest payments are due
semi-annually on June 15 and December 15. Principal payments on the note is due annually
on December 15, through 2020.
The City is not obligated for this debt and is only acting as an agent for the property owners
in collecting assessments and paying the required debt service. The activities of the District
are recorded in the City’s Agency Fund and the outstanding debt is not recorded on the City’s
financial statements. Outstanding bonds at December 31, 2018 totaled $140,000.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2018
NOTE 8: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)
Denver Christian Schools
In October 2003, the City issued Denver Christian Schools Project Revenue Bonds to
provide financial assistance to a private sector entity to acquire equipment and to construct
and renovate certain buildings and educational facilities deemed to be in the public interest.
Neither the City, State, nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for
the repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as a liability in the City’s
financial statements. Outstanding bonds at December 31, 2018 totaled $883,421.
South Metro Fire Rescue Authority
The City entered into an MOU with South Metro Fire Rescue Authority in February of 2011
for the planning and design of a public safety facility.
In September of 2011, the City entered into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the
Authority to construct, own, and operate a common public safety facility. Ownership of the
facility will be determined by a calculation of the aggregate amount of contributions made by
each party to the Agreement. Upon completion of the construction, ongoing operating costs
will be calculated based on the percentage share of ownership interest. The original
Agreement expired in December 31, 2012 and automatically renews upon the same terms
and conditions for one-year periods.
The City began construction of the facility in March of 2012 and the construction was
substantially completed by December 31, 2012. The City’s Police Department along with the
South Metro Fire Rescue Authority moved into the new facility in January of 2013. The City’s
portion of the building cost is recorded as Buildings on the City’s government-wide financial
statements.
Under the terms of the operations agreement, South Metro Fire Rescue Authority is
responsible for paying 50 percent of the buildings utility costs and 20 percent of the building
telephone and internet services. During the year ended December 31, 2018, the South Metro
Fire Rescue Authority paid $20,185 to the City for reimbursement of these operating costs
under the terms of the agreement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2018
NOTE 8: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)
Tabor Amendment
Colorado voters passed an amendment to the State Constitution, Article X, Section 20, which
has several limitations, including revenue raising, spending abilities, and other specific
requirements of state and local government. On November 5, 1996, voters within the City
approved the collection, retention and expenditure of the full revenues generated by the City
in 1996 and subsequent years for street improvement projects, capital projects, basic
municipal services and/or lawful municipal purposes, notwithstanding the provisions of the
Amendment.
The City has established an emergency reserve, representing 3% of qualifying expenditures,
as required by the Amendment. At December 31, 2018, the emergency reserve of $328,000
was recorded in the General Fund.
NOTE 9: PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT
The beginning fund balance of the Arapahoe County Open Space Fund was decreased and
the beginning fund balance of the Capital Project Fund was increased by $176,007. This
adjustment was necessary to properly record prior year capital expenditures in the correct
fund.
NOTE 10: SUBSEQUENT EVENT
Citizens of the City approved the creation of the Cherry Hills Village Charlou Park 3rd Filing
General Improvement District (the “District”) in the November 2018 election. On January
19, 2019, City Council passed an Ordinance declaring the District organized. The purpose of
the District is to obtain financing to be repaid with property taxes levied by the District. Debt
proceeds will be used to fund improvements related to underground existing overhead
electrical distribution lines. The financial information of the District will be reported in the
City’s financial statements as a blended component unit beginning in 2019.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
Year Ended December 31, 2018

2018

REVENUES
Property Taxes
Specific Ownership Taxes
Sales and Use Taxes
Franchise Fees
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Miscellaneous
Interest
TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Current
General Government
Judicial
Community Development
Village Crier
Public Safety
Public Works
Debt Service
Principal
Interest
Capital Outlay
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING (USES)
Proceeds from Issuance of Debt
NET CHANGE IN
FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, Beginning
FUND BALANCE, Ending

ORIGINAL
BUDGET

FINAL
BUDGET

ACTUAL

$ 2,488,931
295,000
1,967,201
495,000
941,829
379,639
359,000
54,400
90,000

$ 2,488,931
295,000
1,967,201
495,000
941,829
379,639
359,000
54,400
90,000

$ 2,491,738
335,343
2,477,617
541,160
1,378,783
424,880
370,922
112,729
288,508

7,071,000

7,071,000

1,930,734
85,131
534,349
36,075
3,175,762
966,945

VARIANCE
Positive
(Negative)
2,807
40,343
510,416
46,160
436,954
45,241
11,922
58,329
198,508

$ 2,504,841
389,520
2,316,683
588,307
1,138,771
382,797
437,220
100,136
103,231

8,421,680

1,350,680

7,961,506

1,930,734
85,131
534,349
36,075
3,175,762
966,945

1,224,006
91,342
585,674
32,959
3,078,303
975,153

706,728
(6,211)
(51,325)
3,116
97,459
(8,208)

1,278,831
88,587
480,076
31,585
3,157,440
995,603

128,250
203,754
655,700

128,250
203,754
685,700

128,250
203,754
535,197

150,503

126,000
155,893
828,799

7,716,700

7,746,700

6,854,638

892,062

7,142,814

(645,700)

(675,700)

1,567,042

2,242,742

818,692

-

-

-

$

2017
ACTUAL

-

-

(645,700)

(675,700)

1,567,042

2,242,742

818,692

12,815,010

4,871,214

13,050,567

8,179,353

12,231,875

$ 12,169,310

$ 4,195,514

$ 14,617,609

$ 10,422,095

$ 13,050,567

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.
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CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
PARKS AND RECREATION FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
Year Ended December 31, 2018

2018

REVENUES
Property Taxes
Interest

ORIGINAL
AND FINAL
BUDGET

ACTUAL

$ 2,130,144
30,000

$ 2,116,234
30,246

2,160,144

$ 2,042,970
29,979

2,146,480

(13,664)

2,072,949

1,076,376
28,000
41,200
91,800
56,500
388,258
-

887,706
22,981
21,340
96,301
77,723
285,715
3,446

188,670
5,019
19,860
(4,501)
(21,223)
102,543
(3,446)

763,049
8,243
19,301
30,958
69,589
301,461
-

744,609
431,088

901,359
274,338

(156,750)
156,750

893,804
212,840

2,857,831

2,570,909

286,922

2,299,245

(697,687)

(424,429)

273,258

(226,296)

2,060,336

2,095,734

35,398

2,322,030

$ 1,362,649

$ 1,671,305

308,656

$ 2,095,734

EXPENDITURES
Current
Personal Services
Supplies and Materials
Utilities
Contractual Services
Maintenance
Other
Capital Outlay
Debt Service
Principal
Interest
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, Beginning

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.
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$

2017
ACTUAL

(13,910)
246

TOTAL REVENUES

FUND BALANCE, Ending

VARIANCE
Positive
(Negative)

$

COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND SCHEDULES

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
December 31, 2018

LAND
DONATION
FUND

ARAPAHOE
COUNTY
CONSERVATION
OPEN SPACE
TRUST
FUND
FUND

$

623,149

$ 1,247,632

$

$

623,149

$ 1,247,632

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
$
Due To Other Funds
Unearned Revenue

473
-

$

ASSETS
Cash and Investments
TOTAL ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES
FUND BALANCES
Restricted
TOTAL FUND BALANCES
TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND BALANCES

$

15,581
224,319
40,000

TOTALS
2018

2017

626,048

$ 2,496,829

$ 2,612,560

$

626,048

$ 2,496,829

$ 2,612,560

$

119,259
-

$

$

135,313
224,319
40,000

53,951
40,000

473

279,900

119,259

399,632

93,951

622,676

967,732

506,789

2,097,197

2,359,109

622,676

967,732

506,789

2,097,197

2,359,109

623,149

$ 1,247,632

626,048

$ 2,496,829

$ 2,453,060

$

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.
29

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
Year Ended December 31, 2018

REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Other
Interest

LAND
DONATION
FUND

ARAPAHOE
COUNTY
CONSERVATION
OPEN SPACE
TRUST
FUND
FUND

$

$

TOTAL REVENUES

5,950
12,386
17,547

163,543
2,575
46,740

$

65,086
3,616

TOTALS
2018

$

234,579
14,961
67,903

2017

$

220,457
45,766
33,753

35,883

212,858

68,702

317,443

299,976

51,622
-

53,642

457,584

51,622
511,226

76,655
63,821

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

51,622

53,642

457,584

562,848

140,476

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

(15,739)

159,216

(388,882)

(245,405)

159,500

FUND BALANCES, Beginning

638,415

984,523

895,671

2,518,609

2,359,109

EXPENDITURES
General Government
Parks and Recreation

Prior Period Adjustment
FUND BALANCES, Ending

$

622,676

(176,007)
$

967,732

$

506,789

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.
30

(176,007)
$ 2,097,197

$ 2,518,609

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
LAND DONATION FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
Year Ended December 31, 2018

2018
ORIGINAL
AND FINAL
BUDGET
REVENUES
Interest
Intergovernmental
Other

$

8,500
187,800
5,000

ACTUAL
$

17,547
5,950
12,386

VARIANCE
Positive
(Negative)
$

9,047
(181,850)
7,386

2017
ACTUAL
$

9,188
43,011

TOTAL REVENUES

201,300

35,883

(165,417)

52,199

EXPENDITURES
General and Administrative

431,720

51,622

380,098

76,655

431,720

51,622

380,098

76,655

(230,420)

(15,739)

214,681

(24,456)

680,720

638,415

(42,305)

662,871

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, Beginning
FUND BALANCE, Ending

$

450,300

$

622,676

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.
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$

172,376

$

638,415

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
ARAPAHOE COUNTY OPEN SPACE FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
Year Ended December 31, 2018

2018
ORIGINAL
AND FINAL
BUDGET
REVENUES
Open Space Shareback
Other
Interest

$

TOTAL REVENUES

150,000
3,000
9,000

ACTUAL
$

163,543
2,575
46,740

VARIANCE
Positive
(Negative)
$

13,543
(425)
37,740

2017
ACTUAL
$

156,954
2,755
22,672

162,000

212,858

50,858

182,381

225,000

53,642

171,358

58,191

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

225,000

53,642

171,358

58,191

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

(63,000)

159,216

222,216

124,190

984,297

984,523

226

860,333

EXPENDITURES
Parks and Recreation

FUND BALANCE, Beginning
Prior Period Adjustment

-

FUND BALANCE, Ending

$

921,297

(176,007)
$

967,732

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.
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(176,007)
$

46,435

$

984,523

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
CONSERVATION TRUST FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
Year Ended December 31, 2018

2018

REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Interest

ORIGINAL
BUDGET

FINAL
BUDGET

$

$

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Parks and Recreation
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, Beginning
FUND BALANCE, Ending

$

60,000
1,600

60,000
1,600

ACTUAL
$

65,086
3,616

VARIANCE
Positive
(Negative)
$

5,086
2,016

2017
ACTUAL
$

63,503
1,893

61,600

61,600

68,702

7,102

65,396

417,500

692,500

457,584

234,916

5,630

(355,900)

(630,900)

(388,882)

242,018

59,766

896,227

869,481

895,671

26,190

835,905

540,327

$

238,581

$

506,789

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.
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$

268,208

$

895,671

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
Year Ended December 31, 2018

2018
ORIGINAL
AND FINAL
BUDGET
REVENUES
Interest
Other

$

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
General and Administrative
Debt Issuance Costs
Capital Outlay
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Proceeds from Issuance of Debt

60,000
-

ACTUAL
$

134,055
-

FUND BALANCE, Beginning
Prior Period Adjustment
$

$

113,945
100,000

74,055

213,945

10,000
7,220,000

16,120
4,720,551

(6,120)
2,499,449

7,748
204,671
3,821,716

7,230,000

4,736,671

2,493,329

4,034,135

(7,170,000)

(4,602,616)

2,567,384

(3,820,190)

-

12,004,671
8,184,481

-

(7,170,000)

(4,602,616)

2,567,384

7,280,260

8,184,481

904,221

-

176,007

176,007

-

$ 3,757,872

$ 3,647,612

110,260

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.
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74,055
-

134,055

-

FUND BALANCE, Ending

$

2017
ACTUAL

60,000

-

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

VARIANCE
Positive
(Negative)

$ 8,184,481

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
WATER AND SEWER FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
Year Ended December 31, 2018

2018
ORIGINAL
AND FINAL
BUDGET
REVENUES
Tap Fees
Sewer Administration Fees
Sewer Repairs and Maintenance Fees
Miscellaneous
Interest

$

5,000
2,328
69,660
8,000

ACTUAL
$

25,100
83,420
567
15,843

VARIANCE
Positive
(Negative)
$

20,100
(2,328)
13,760
567
7,843

2017
ACTUAL
$

31,100
50
95,389
8,296

TOTAL REVENUES

84,988

124,930

39,942

134,835

EXPENDITURES
Legal Fees
Contractual Services
Repairs and Maintenance
Other
Depreciation Expense

2,500
20,000
500,000
1,000
23,612

292
8,925
18,044
23,612

2,208
11,075
481,956
1,000
-

1,959
11,870
7,252
512
23,612

547,112

50,873

496,239

45,205

$ (462,124)

74,057

536,181

89,630

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
NET INCOME
NET POSITION, Beginning
NET POSITION, Ending

1,077,494

987,864

$ 1,151,551

$ 1,077,494

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.
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$

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
AGENCY FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
Year Ended December 31, 2018

2018
ORIGINAL
AND FINAL
BUDGET
REVENUES
Assessment Revenue
Interest on Assessments
Interest Income

$

TOTAL REVENUES

72,726
6,975
500

ACTUAL
$

63,330
6,048
629

VARIANCE
Positive
(Negative)
$

(9,396)
(927)
129

2017
ACTUAL
$

68,763
8,713
515

80,201

70,007

(10,194)

77,991

797

694

103

775

100,000
8,000

80,000
4,698

20,000
3,302

90,000
6,935

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

108,797

85,392

23,405

97,710

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

(28,596)

(15,385)

13,211

(19,719)

42,234

32,963

(9,271)

52,682

EXPENDITURES
Treasurer's Fees
Debt Service
Principal
Interest Expense

FUND BALANCE, Beginning
FUND BALANCE, Ending

$

13,638

$

17,578

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.
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$

3,940

$

32,963

CITY OF CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE, COLORADO
AGENCY FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Year Ended December 31, 2018

BALANCE
DECEMBER 31,
2017

BALANCE
DECEMBER 31,
ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS
2018

ASSETS
Cash and Investments
Due from Others

$

32,860
103

$

70,006

$

85,391

$

17,475
103

TOTAL ASSETS

$

32,963

$

70,006

$

85,391

$

17,578

LIABILITIES
Due Property Owners
TOTAL LIABILITIES

32,963
$

32,963

70,006
$

70,006

See the accompanying independent auditors' report.
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85,391
$

85,391

17,578
$

17,578

STATE COMPLIANCE

Financial Planning 02/01
Form # 350-050-36

The public report burden for this information collection is estimated to average 380 hours annually.

LOCAL HIGHWAY FINANCE REPORT
This Information From The Records Of (example - City of _ or County of Prepared By:
City of Cherry Hills Village
Phone:

City or County:
Arapahoe
YEAR ENDING :
December 2016
Karen L. Proctor
303-783-2723

I. DISPOSITION OF HIGHWAY-USER REVENUES AVAILABLE FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT EXPENDITURE
A.

ITEM
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Total receipts available
Minus amount used for collection expenses
Minus amount used for nonhighway purposes
Minus amount used for mass transit
Remainder used for highway purposes

Local
Motor-Fuel
Taxes

B.
Local
Motor-Vehicle
Taxes

II. RECEIPTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES
ITEM
A. Receipts from local sources:
1. Local highway-user taxes
a. Motor Fuel (from Item I.A.5.)
b. Motor Vehicle (from Item I.B.5.)
c. Total (a.+b.)
2. General fund appropriations
3. Other local imposts (from page 2)
4. Miscellaneous local receipts (from page 2)
5. Transfers from toll facilities
6. Proceeds of sale of bonds and notes:
a. Bonds - Original Issues
b. Bonds - Refunding Issues
c. Notes
d. Total (a. + b. + c.)
7. Total (1 through 6)
B. Private Contributions
C. Receipts from State government
(from page 2)
D. Receipts from Federal Government
(from page 2)
E. Total receipts (A.7 + B + C + D)

A. Bonds (Total)
1. Bonds (Refunding Portion)
B. Notes (Total)

AMOUNT

876,488
431,828
0

0
1,308,316
325,337
0
1,633,652

C. Receipts from
State HighwayUser Taxes

D. Receipts from
Federal Highway
Administration

III. DISBURSEMENTS FOR ROAD
AND STREET PURPOSES
ITEM
AMOUNT
A. Local highway disbursements:
1. Capital outlay (from page 2)
387,852
2. Maintenance:
755,713
3. Road and street services:
a. Traffic control operations
14,482
b. Snow and ice removal
43,852
c. Other
5,722
d. Total (a. through c.)
64,056
4. General administration & miscellaneous
222,093
5. Highway law enforcement and safety
292,411
6. Total (1 through 5)
1,722,124
B. Debt service on local obligations:
1. Bonds:
a. Interest
b. Redemption
c. Total (a. + b.)
0
2. Notes:
a. Interest
b. Redemption
c. Total (a. + b.)
0
0
3. Total (1.c + 2.c)
C. Payments to State for highways
D. Payments to toll facilities
E. Total disbursements (A.6 + B.3 + C + D)
1,722,124

IV. LOCAL HIGHWAY DEBT STATUS
(Show all entries at par)
Amount Issued
Opening Debt

Redemptions

Closing Debt

0
0

V. LOCAL ROAD AND STREET FUND BALANCE

Notes and Comments:

A. Beginning Balance
0

FORM FHWA-536 (Rev. 1-05)

B. Total Receipts C. Total Disbursements D. Ending Balance
1,633,652
1,722,124
0

PREVIOUS EDITIONS OBSOLETE
1
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E. Reconciliation
(88,472)

(Next Page)

Highway Users Report 18.xls

STATE:
Colorado
YEAR ENDING (mm/yy):
December 2016

LOCAL HIGHWAY FINANCE REPORT

II. RECEIPTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES - DETAIL
ITEM
A.3. Other local imposts:
a. Property Taxes and Assessments
b. Other local imposts:
1. Sales Taxes
2. Infrastructure & Impact Fees
3. Liens
4. Licenses
5. Specific Ownership &/or Other
6. Total (1. through 5.)
c. Total (a. + b.)

ITEM
A.4. Miscellaneous local receipts:
a. Interest on investments
b. Traffic Fines & Penalities
c. Parking Garage Fees
d. Parking Meter Fees
e. Sale of Surplus Property
f. Charges for Services
431,828
g. Other Misc. Receipts
431,828
h. Other
431,828
i. Total (a. through h.)

AMOUNT

AMOUNT

0

(Carry forward to page 1)

ITEM
C. Receipts from State Government
1. Highway-user taxes
2. State general funds
3. Other State funds:
a. State bond proceeds
b. Project Match
c. Motor Vehicle Registrations
d. Other (Specify)
e. Other (Specify)
f. Total (a. through e.)
4. Total (1. + 2. + 3.f)

(Carry forward to page 1)

AMOUNT
301,394

23,943
23,943
325,337

ITEM
D. Receipts from Federal Government
1. FHWA (from Item I.D.5.)
2. Other Federal agencies:
a. Forest Service
b. FEMA
c. HUD
d. Federal Transit Admin
e. U.S. Corps of Engineers
f. Other Federal
g. Total (a. through f.)
3. Total (1. + 2.g)

AMOUNT

0
(Carry forward to page 1)

III. DISBURSEMENTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES - DETAIL
ON NATIONAL
HIGHWAY
SYSTEM
(a)

A.1. Capital outlay:
a. Right-Of-Way Costs
b. Engineering Costs
c. Construction:
(1). New Facilities
(2). Capacity Improvements
(3). System Preservation
(4). System Enhancement & Operation
(5). Total Construction (1) + (2) + (3) + (4)
d. Total Capital Outlay (Lines 1.a. + 1.b. + 1.c.5)

OFF NATIONAL
HIGHWAY
SYSTEM
(b)
9,285

378,567
0
0

378,567
387,852

TOTAL
(c)
0
9,285
0
0
378,567
0
378,567
387,852
(Carry forward to page 1)

Notes and Comments:

FORM FHWA-536 (Rev.1-05)
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CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE
COLORADO
2450 E. Quincy Avenue
Cherry Hills Village, CO 80113
www.cherryhillsvi] lage.com

Village Center
Telephone 303-789-2541
FAX 303-761-9386
ITEM: llc(i)

MEMORANDUM

TO:

HONORABLE MAYOR STEWART AND MEMBERS OF CITY COUNCIL

FROM:

RACHEL GRANRATH, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR

SUBJECT: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT MONTH END REPORT FOR
APRIL, 2019

DATE:

MAY2I,2019

BUILDING PERMITS SUMMARY:
Total Permits
Total Revenue
New Home Permits
New Home Revenue
Remodel/Addition Permits
Remodel/Addition Revenue

April 2019
78
$1 11,539
1
$40,976
11
$23,523

YTD 2019
246
$287,019
2
$65,170
54
$103,576

YTD 2018
225
$532,439
5
$199,392
47
$120,092

YTD % Change
9%
-46%
-60%
-67%
15%
-14%

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION:
•

April 9,2019 regular meeting: Cancelled due to lack of agenda items.

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT AND APPEALS:
•

April 18, 2019 special meeting:
o Board Member training led by City Attorney, Kathie Guckenberger
o Discussion on the 9 variance criteria. There was a great discussion hut ultimate
recommendation was to keep the 9 criteria the same with one minor add the word
“reasonable” to criteria (2) There are no “reasonable” design alternatives or
alternative locations for structures that would obviate the need for the requested
variance or would reduce the amount of the variance required.

ATTACHMENTS:
Exhibit A: Planning Project Activity List
Exhibit B: Year-to-Date Permit Activity Graphs
Exhibit C: Permit Summary Table

EXHIBIT A

Planning Project Activity List
Community Development Department
Report Date: May 21, 2019

City Council and Planning and Zoning Commission Members are advised to avoid discussing quasi-judicial land use
matters with any person outside of the public hearing process. The restriction on discussion of quasi-judicial
matters is generally considered to take effect when aformal application has been filed with the City. The following
list includes only those matters for which the City has received a formal application. City Council and Planning and
Zoning Commission Members are nevertheless advised to use caution in discussing any land use matter that may
become quasi-judicial even before the filing ofa formal application.

Quasi-Judicial Cases
Applicant

Address

Description

Kent Denver Day
School

4000 E Quincy
Avenue

Expanded Use request to modify
development agreement to remove and
modify the agreement in regards to
Traffic imorovements

PTRC
Review

P&Z Review

3/12/19

Council
Review
Approved 5/7
City Attorney
modifying
Areement

Non Quasi-Judicial Cases and Ordinance Amendments
Applicant

Address

Description

PTRC
Review

P&Z Review

Council
Review

Michael Brady
O’Donnell

1199 E Layton
Avenue

Subdivision renaming of “Swastika
Acres” to “Old Cherry Hills”

n/a

n/a

Approved and
Recorded

City of Cherry -lills
Village

N/A

Code Modernization

TBD

TBD

Steering
committee
meetings

1lr77
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EXHIBIT B

TOTAL PERMITS
Year to Date through April
10 Year COMPARISON
Total Number of Building Permits
Ten-Year Comparison
Year to Date April
350

296

300

261

252

278

271
244

246

iiiilllliii

250

220

217

200

a)

150
100

E
50
0

217

248

225

Year

Estimated Revenue of All Building Permits
Ten-Year Comparison
Year to Date April
$600,000

$532,439
$500,000

$379,615

$400,000

$267,357

w
$300,000 $131,822
$200,000
$100,000

$-

$171,249
95,091

Isli
—

I

$285,2sg

$237,498
$202,914

$259,756.25

I

IIIII iI
$167,056

I

I
Year

1

Year to Date through April
10 YEAR COMPARISON
Number of New Residential Building Permits
Ten-Year Comparison
Year to Date April
9

8

8
1
6

5

E

5

5

I1II1i4I ‘Ill
3.6

— — — — — —

I

_ I
I

Year

Estimated Revenue of All New Residential Permits
Ten.year Comparison
Year to Date April
$25o,ooo

$226,747
$199,392

$209, 000

jI

a.’
a?

$25oooo

$106,927

$100,907

$103,671.07

a?

$1ocoo

$50,000

$51786

I I

I I

$65,170

$42,544

i

— — —

I I I 1 I

I
Year

2

ADDITIONS & REMODELS
Year to Date through April
10 YEAR COMPARISON
Number of Addition & Remodel Building Permits
Ten-Year Comparison
Year to Date April
60

54

54
50

50

41

40

20
-D

E
D
z

10

33

I
I
I

—
—

op

40

42
38

iiiIIIIiII
Year

Estimated Revenue of Addition & Remodel Permits
Ten-Year Comparison
Year to Date April
$140,000

$120,092

$120,000

$89,60%79,481
a)

$77,348

$100,000

$58,871

$70,308

$72,7581,113

$80,000

a)
$60,000

11921
I

$42,231

$20,000
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$49

11111

$103,576

I

I
Year
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$76,843
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CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE
CoLoRADo
2450 E. Quincy Avenue
Cherry Hills Village, CO 80113
www.cherryhillsvillage.com

Village Center
Telephone 303-789-2541
FAX 303-761-9386

ITEM: 11 c(i

MEMORANDUM

TO:

HONORABLE MAYOR STEWART AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

FROM:

MICHELLE TOVREA, POLICE CHIEF

SUBJECT: APRIL REPORT
DATE:

MAY2I,2019

Officer Sack is back on light duty after his surgery on April 3rd for a bone graft and a new brace
on his leg. It is always good to have Cory in the building and he continues to improve.
Although the weather has been a bit unpredictable, the supervisors have begun to deploy the
motorcycles when appropriate.
Technician Nathalie Klasens coordinated another successful drug take back day in April. The
Department collected 133 pounds of unwanted prescription medication for proper disposal.
Sergeant Eric Stremel has coordinated another “Click It or Ticket” event with the state. The
Department will participate along with several other jurisdictions from May 20th to June 3id• We
will deploy four shifts each five hours long. Our costs will be reimbursed by the state.
The Department finished up Taser and Defensive tactics this month. In addition, the records
management team attended two training sessions this month (each session was three days long).
The report on the project is very positive, our group is ahead of schedule with regard to training.
**There were no bicycle or pedestrian accidents in April.
Investigations Case Summary:
There were 4 Theft Reports for the month of April:
In the first, the victim stated that in November 2018 an unknown individual(s) took two
pieces of jewelry from his residence. This case is inactive no new leads.
In the second, the victim stated that someone took a package from the front porch of her
home. This case is inactive no new leads.
-

—

-

—
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In the third, the victim stated that someone took a package from the front porch of his
home. The victim added that an additional package was taken from his front porch a few
days earlier. This case is inactive no new leads.
In the fourth, the victim stated that someone took a package from the front porch of his
home. The victim’s doorbell video system recorded the package being taken by an
unidentified male. This case is inactive no new leads.
—

-

—

There was 1 Trespass report for the month of April:
The reporting party stated that he discovered someone gained access to a storage trailer
belonging to his employer, as well as another trailer owned by the resident. The lock on
the first trailer was cut, and the locking mechanism on the second trailer had been pried
open. Nothing appeared to be missing from either trailer. This case is inactive no new
leads.
-

—

There were 7 Vehicle Trespass reports for the month of April:
In the first, the victim stated that someone gained access to his unlocked automobile
while it was parked in the driveway of his residence. Bose earbuds and a skateboard were
taken from the vehicle. This case is inactive no new leads.
In the second, the victim stated that a home video surveillance camera recorded an
unknown male enter his unlocked automobile while it was parked in the driveway of his
residence. A flannel shirt was taken from the car. This case is inactive no new leads.
In the third, the victim stated that someone gained access to his unlocked automobile
while it was parked in the driveway of his residence. A backpack with clothing items was
taken from the vehicle. This case is inactive no new leads.
In the fourth, the victim stated that someone gained access to her unlocked automobile
while it was parked in the driveway of her residence. A pair of sunglasses was taken from
the car. This case is inactive no new leads.
In the fifth, the victim stated that a home video surveillance camera recorded an
unidentified male gaining access to her unlocked automobile while it was parked in the
driveway of her residence. Nothing was reported taken from the vehicle. This case is
inactive no new leads.
* Note: The above five
incidents occurred on the same day and time frame and were
all in close proximity to each other.
In the sixth, the victim stated someone gained access to her automobile while parked in a
parking lot. Entry was made by breaking out the front passenger window. A purse and
wallet were taken from the vehicle. This case is inactive no new leads.
In the seventh, the victim stated that someone gained access to his automobile while
parked at a trailhead. Entry was made by breaking out the rear passenger window. A
men’s jacket and a pair of sunglasses were taken from the vehicle. This case is inactive
no new leads.
-

—

-

—

-

—

-

—

-

—

-

—

-

—

There were 2 Criminal Mischief reports for the month of April:
In the first, the victim stated that someone shattered the passenger door glass of her
automobile while parked at a trailhead. This case is inactive no new leads. (This is
not related to the trailhead case above).
In the second, the victim stated that someone cut the tops off two evergreen trees in his
backyard. This case is inactive no new leads.
-

—

-

—

There was 1 Fraud report for the month of April:
G:\Citv Council\MTG-MEMO
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The victim stated he agreed to purchase a precious gem from a jeweler in California. The
victim transferred the funds from his bank account into a bank account provided by the
jeweler. The victim later discovered that the routing number provided by the jeweler did
not belong to the business and they never received his fund transfer. This case remains
under investigation.

There was 1 Forgery report for the month of April:
The victim stated that he placed items for sale on Craigslist and an unidentified female
mailed him a check to purchase the goods. The victim’s financial institution informed
him that the check sent by the suspect was fraudulent. The victim did not ship the
merchandise and reported no monetary loss. This case is inactive no new leads
-

—

There was 1 Harassment report for the month of April:
The victim stated that while stopped at the traffic light on E. Hampden Avenue, a male
motorist approached her automobile. According to the victim, the male subject threatened
her and punched the side of her car causing a minor dent. The male subject was identified
and issued a summons for the violation. This case is closed.
-

G:\City Council\MTG-MEMO
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CHERRY HILLS POLICE DEPARTMENT STATISTICS

April 2019
TRAFFIC ACCIDENT

YEAR TO DATE YEAR TO DATE
2019
2018

PERCENT
CHANGE

25

93

96

-3%

233

824

664

24%

6

13

5

160%

119

396

425

DUI ARRESTS

1

4

17

-76%

DUS ARRESTS

10

23

10

130%

# CRIME REPORTS

19

62

99

-37%

#ALARMS

43

161

158

2%

# ARRESTS (INCLUDES DUIS & DUSs)

16

46

49

-6%

CITIZEN ASSISTS

13

56

46

22%

ASSISTTOOTHERAGENCY

15

60

52

15%

2043

8655

7704

12%

CRIME PREVENTION NOTICES

3

10

18

-44%

FIELD INTERVIEWCARDS

2

10

21

-52%

ALL CITATIONS
PARKING TICKETS
TRAFFIC WARNINGS

PROPERTY CHECKS (HW&BLDG)

-7%
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6
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2
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2015 YTD

2015 YTD

2O15YTD

2O17YTD

Cherry Hills Village Crime Statistics
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2018 YTD
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Theft / Mail Theft

2O17YTD
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2
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2016 YTD

2016 YTD

2017 YTD

1

Burglary

2017 YTD
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2018 YTD

7

2018 YTD

Theft from Motor Vehicle

ZO18YTD

YEAR-TO-DATE THROUGH April (2015-2019)
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Fraud Related Crimes
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Cherry Hills Village
Code Enforcement Statistics
April 2019
Code Enforcement Issues

Month

YTD

42

128

33

83

0

3

Construction Site Violations

46

131

Permit Violations

0

6

0
0
0
7
2
10
9
2
13
92
0
1
1
45

4
2
1
17
6
14
34
9
49
271
0
4
3
133

On View Violations

—

Requests for Service

Stop Work Orders Served
Fence Violations
Weed Violations
Trash, Debris and Junk
Trees/Bushes Violations
Zoning Violations
Right.
RolI-offs/Port-a-let Violations

6

‘‘•

Summons Issued
Notice of Violations
Misc. Code Violations

[

Year To Date
IOn View

Violations
I

Year to Date
34%

Requests for
Service

Various Code
Violations
• Right of Way &
Site Triangle
Violations
Construction
Violations

Year to Date

•Warning&
Personal
Contacts
Notice of
Violations
I

Summons
Issued

Cherry Hills Village
Animal Control Statistics
April 2019
Animal Control Issues
Control of Dogs
Barking Dogs
Aggressive Dogs
Wildlife Complaints
--

.

I. WV

I Summons Issued

Month
45
35
4
0
13
35
0
0

YTD
118
80
9
0
37
78
0
0

Year to Date
• Verbal
Warnings
• Written
Warnings
• Summons
Issued

Year to Date
• Educational
Contacts
• Wildlife
Complaints

Year to Date
90%

0% 10%

Control of
Dogs

Dogs

c’
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April 2019

Personnel Summary

Commendations:
Officer:
Received From:
Details:

Greg Gillett
Hopkins Elementary School
Officer Gillett went to Hopkins Elementary School and spoke to the pre-school children
about being a police officer and basic safety. He received multiple “thank you” notes from
the staff and children. Great work Greg!

Officer:
Received From:
Details:

Bob Burnett
Citizen
Officer Burnett was commended for his actions during a traffic contact.
Having made a traffic stop for expired license plates, Officer Burnett learned
that driver had just left Craig Hospital visiting her husband who had been in a
bad accident. After a DMV check, it was discovered that the registration was
current.
In response to the contact with Officer Burnett, the driver sent the following
email; I wanted to thank you for your help and compassion today when you
pulled me over at Cherry Hills CC. Needless to say it has been hard with my
husband being at Craig but meeting individuals like you are the silver lining.
Thank you for your service and the empathy you showed today!
This is great customer service!
‘

CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE
CoLoiADo
2450 E. Quincy Avenue
Cherry Hills Village, CO 80113
www.cherryhillsvillage.com

Village Center
Telephone 303-789-2541
FAX 303-761-9386

1rii: II c(i)

MEMORANDUM

TO:

HONORABLE MAYOR STEWART AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

FROM:

TERRI LITTLEFORD, MUNICIPAL COURT CLERK

SUBJECT: MUNICIPAL COURT MONTH END REPORT FOR APRIL, 2019
DATE:

MAY2I,2019

DISCUSSION
Municipal Court Statistics
Monthly Totals
Citations filed
Court appearances/guilty to original
Plea by mail letters sent
Revenue

2019
209
133
152
$24,875.00

2018
173
98
120
$22,240.00

Difference
21%
36%
27%
$2,635.00

BUDGET IMPACT STATEMENT
Through April, 2019 the Municipal Court has collected 34% of the total budgeted revenue
amount.

ATTACHMENTS
Exhibit A: Municipal Court Monthly Activity and Graphs

G:\Cit’- (oincd\\1F(;-NI1I()

EXHIBIT A

CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE MUNICIPAL COURT
MONTHLY ACTIVITY
April-i 9
MONTH

YTD

PRIOR YTD

196
7
1
5
209

673
14
2
17
706

552
5
2
12
571

CLOSED BY CLERK
CLOSED BY CLERK
TOTAL

9
9

23
23

10
10

PLEA BY MAIL
GLTY PLEA BY MAIL
TOTAL

143
143

499
499

411
411

31
68
11
0
0
21
2
0

93
244
40
2
0
74
14
0

118
282
51
4
0
62
4
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0
0
133

0
0
0
0
467

0
0
0
0
521

COMPLAINTS FILED
TRAFFIC
PARKING
DOG
OTHER
TOTAL

COURT ACTIVITY
GLTY TO ORIG
GUILTY TO AMENDED
DEFERRED JUDGMENTS
NOT GUILTY (set to trial)
NOT GUILTY (set to jury)
DISMISSED (proof of ins provided)
DISMISSED
SHOW CAUSE HEARINGS
TRIAL TO COURT
CONVICTIONS
AQU ITTALS
DISMISSED
TRIAL TO JURY
CONVICTIONS
ACQU ITTALS
DISMISSED
MISTRIALS
NUMBER OF PEOPLE IN COURT
TOTAL MONEY COLLECTED

$24,875.00

$91 ,263.50
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CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE
CoLoiDo
2450 E. Quincy Avenue
Cherry Hills Village, CO 80113
www.cherryhillsvillage.com

Village Center
Telephone 303-789-2541
FAX 303-761-9386
ITEM: llc(i)

MEMORANDUM

TO:

HONORABLE MAYOR STEWART AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

FROM:

JAY GOLDIE, DEPUTY CITY MANAGER/DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS

SUBJECT: PUBLIC WORKS APRL 2019-MONTH END REPORT
DATE:

MAY 21,2019

The streets crew continued to respond to snowstorrns in early April using eleven tons of salt/sand
on City streets. The crew completed gravel road maintenance throughout the City and applied
1,200 gallons of mag chloride and 4,600 gallons of water. The heavy snows created numerous
potholes around the City requiring .72 tons of asphalt to make the repairs. Once the snow
melted, the crew performed sweeping operations throughout the City collecting 35 tons of
material.
The streets crew also performed asphalt work for the 2019 Capital Improvement Project (CIP) on
Oxford, Princeton and Hudson. Several maintenance tasks were completed including
replacement and repair of signs that were damaged from winter accidents and clearing debris
from drains throughout the City.
The Parks crew spent multiple hours performing a variety of maintenance tasks including
mowing and trimming, irrigation repair, irrigation turn-ons, trail sweeping, flower bed
maintenance and cleanup, citywide trash pick-up, stump grinding, shop work, fence repair and
maintenance on City Parks, Trails and Open Space. Parks staff continued to perform tree
maintenance including tree pruning on trails and watering of trees in all City open space parks
(John Meade, Woodie Hollow, Alan Hutto, Quincy Farm and the Annex). Staff is in the process
of interviewing and hiring seasonal employees to assist with maintenance through the summer
months.
The City issued 11 right-of-way permits in April bringing the total number to 34 for 2019.
ATTACHMENTS

Exhibit A: April 2019 Public Works logs and Right-of-Way Monthly Report

EXHIBIT A

APRIL 2019 PARKS RECORD LOG SHEET
ad Administrative Office Work
bm Building Maintenance
cn Concrete
cp Overseeing contractor project
cr Crackseal
fn Fence repairs
ft Fertilizing Trees
gm Gen. Maint to trails, parks, ROW
gps GPS and Mapping
hi-d Loads to dump
hI-po Materials to shop
hl-r Loads to recycle shop
hi-s Loads to shop
ir irrigation repairs
In Landscape Repairs
Misc Miscellaneous
mw-p Mowing Parks
mw-e Mowing entry features
mw-r Mowing rights of ways
mw-t Mowing Trails
p1 Planting
pm Preventative maint/repair on equip
p0 Purchase materials all operations
se Special Events
sg Sign repair
shp Shop Work
sn Snow
spw-Spray Weeds
sw-t Sweeping trails
tr Training & Conf/inciuding safety
ts Trash both cans and loose trash
It Trimming trees & maint & wrapping
wa-Watering
wd-m Weed cutting mains
wd-p Weed cutting parks
wd-r Weed cutting rights of ways
wd-t Weed cutting trails
pto Paid Time Off
hol Holiday Pay
to-c Time off comp
Io-w Time off for workers comp
-

Week 14 Week 15 Week 16 Week 17 Week
27
15
16
8

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

34

24

5

16

67

57

59

47.5

6

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

16

-

-

-

36

66

-

-

-

1
26
41

-

-

22

-

2

-

-

-

-

70
5
6

7
2

8

4
20

-

-

42

-

-

-

18.5

10

20

201.5

201.5

201

-

-

-

TOTAL HOURS

200

TOTALS
66
0
0
0
0
0
0
79
0
0
0
0
0
183
0
53.5
0
0
16
0
102
0
0
0
1
50
41
0
0
81
35
6
0
0
0
42
0
48.5
0
0
0
0
804

MATER IALS
mu Mulch
Is Top soil
sr-r Split rail Rails
sr-p Split rail Posts
tb Tree branches
Sod
ms Misc materials
rb Road Base
Bollards
Rock
Construction Materials
Clippings
Trash
Planters Mix
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

APRIL 2019 STREETS RECORD LOG SHEET

ad Administrative Office Work
as Asphalt patching operations
bm Building Maintenance
cn Concrete repairs
cp Overseeing contractor operations
cr Sealing Operation
dr- Drainage Work
em Equipment Maintenance
qm General Maintenance
gr Grounds Maintenance
gv Gravel road maintenance
hl-d Loads to dump
hi-po Materials hauled to shop
hI-r Loads to recycle plant
hi-s Loads to shop
ir Irrigation repairs
In Landscape Repairs
ms Material Stockpiling
Misc
oc-OnCall
pm Preventative Maintenance
ro Purchasing materials
pt Street Painting
sg-SignWork
sh Shouldering Work
shp Shop Maintenance
sn Snow removal operations
sw Sweeper operations & cleanup
tr-Training
tr-pI Plow Training
tr-sw Sweeper Training
tr-sa-SafetyTraining
tr-he Heavy Equipment Training
ts Trash (cans and loose)
tt-Tree Trimming
pto Paid time off
to-w Time off workers comp
Hol Holiday
TOTALS

Week 14 Week 15 Week 16
13.5
18
43

-

-

Week 17

Week

6
101.5

-

-

8

-

69

-

16
32
5

-

-

22
62
8

-

7

-

81

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1

-

10

-

16

-

4

3
14

-

-

-

-

—

8

46
20

240

20.5

251

232

-

80

-

6

-

-

10

-

-

-

as-in Asphalt (Shop-Laid)
as-out Asphalt (demo)
rb Road base
on Concrete (Demo)
on Concrete
ts Topsoil
Mulch
tb Tree Branches
cf Crusher Fines
ss-SaltlSand
ms Misc.
sw-dump Sweepings
sw-shop Sweepings
Ditch Dirt
Rock
Water
Mag Chloride
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

—
—

tons
tons
tons
tons

236.5
251
MATER IALS
26
24

yards
yards
yards
loads
tons
tons
loads

35

11

-

-

Trash
Construction Debris

yards
loads
tons

4

10.5

29

loads
tons

61
24
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
11
0
0
43.5

0
26,500

g

TOTALS
37.5
144.5
0
0
8
69
38
94
5
8
88
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
1
0
26
0
7
14
0
46
288.5
0
0
80
6
0
0
0
10
0
0
0
970.5

200

0
26500
200

0
0

2019 RIGHT-OF-WAY PERMITS
MONTHLY REPORT
JANUARY 2019
UTILITY
WORK

DRIVEWAY
INSTALL/REPAIR

7

1

VEHICLE
TRACKING PAD

PARKS!
OCCUPANCY

TRAILS

LANDSCAPE

MAJOR
JOBS

TOTAL
PERMITS
8

FEBRUARY 2019
UTILITY
WORK

DRIVEWAY
INSTALL/REPAIR

VEHICLE
TRACKING PAD

PARKS/
TRAILS

OCCUPANCY

3

LAN DSCAPE

MAJOR

TOTAL

JOBS

PER M ITS

1

4

MARCH 2019
UTILITY
WORK

DRIVEWAY
INSTALL/REPAIR

8

VEHICLE
TRACKING PAD

PARKS/
TRAILS

OCCUPANCY

1

LANDSCAPE

MAJOR
JOBS

TOTAL
PER M ITS
11

LAN DSCAPE

MAJOR
JOBS

TOTAL
PERMITS

2
APRIL 2019

UTILITY
WORK

DRIVEWAY
I NSTALL/RE PAIR

8

VEHICLE
TRACKING PAD

PARKS!
TRAILS

OCCUPANCY

1

1

1

11

MAY 2019
UTILITY
WORK

DRIVEWAY
INSTALL/REPAIR

VEHICLE
TRACKING PAD

OCCUPANCY

PARKS!
TRAILS

LAN DSCAPE

MAJOR
JOBS

TOTAL
PER M ITS
0

JUNE 2019
UTILITY
WORK

DRIVEWAY
INSTALL/REPAIR

VEHICLE
TRACKING PAD

OCCUPANCY

PARKS/
TRAILS

LAN DSCAPE

MAJOR
JOBS

TOTAL
PERMITS
0

JULY 2019
UTILITY
WORK

DRIVEWAY
INSTALL/REPAIR

VEHICLE
TRACKING PAD

OCCUPANCY

PARKS!
TRAILS

LAN DSCAPE

MAJOR
JOBS

TOTAL
PERMITS
0

AUGUST 2019
UTILITY
WORK

DRIVEWAY
INSTALL/REPAIR

VEHICLE
TRACKING PAD

PARKS!
TRAILS

OCCUPANCY

MAJOR
LANDSCAPE

TOTAL
PERMITS

JOBS

0
SEPTEMBER 2019
UTILITY
WORK

DRIVEWAY
INSTALL/REPAIR

VEHICLE
TRACKING PAD

PARKS!
TRAILS

OCCUPANCY

LANDSCAPE

MAJOR
JOBS

TOTAL
PER M ITS
0

OCTOBER 2019
UTILITY
WORK

DRIVEWAY
INSTALL/REPAIR

VEHICLE
TRACKING PAD

PARKS!
TRAILS

OCCUPANCY

LAN DSCAPE

MAJOR

TOTAL

JOBS

PER M ITS
0

NOVEMBER 2019
UTILITY
WORK

DRIVEWAY
INSTALL/REPAIR

VEHICLE
TRACKING PAD

PARKS!
TRAILS

OCCUPANCY

MAJOR
JOBS

LAN DSCAPE

TOTAL
PERMITS
0

DECEMBER 2019
UTILITY
WORK

DRIVEWAY
INSTALL/REPAIR

VEHICLE
TRACKING PAD

PARKS!
TRAILS

OCCUPANCY

LAN DSCAPE

MAJOR
JOBS

TOTAL
PER M ITS
0

LANDSCAPE

MAJOR
JOBS

TOTAL
PERMITS

2019 YEAR END
TOTALS
UTILITY
DRIVEWAY
WORK INSTALL/REPAIR
26
3

VEHICLE
TRACKING PAD

PARKS!
TRAILS

OCCUPANCY
0

4

1

0

0

34

